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EXPLANATION

OF THE MAP ON THE OPPOSITE FPAGE,

— e — -

a.—Magazine, three fast thick of earth,

f—Bavrmcka, two storles high, with stone chlimneys,

=0T 1o a ]:'l]'“gl.‘! cellar,

i, ="T'hé Fate,

o=[Liging gronnd, that the Fort stands on, fifeen et higher than the
ik of Lhe river,

JSe—=Hanl of the river, twelve feat bizh.

ae="The lnnding.

A=A mood] fording, 200 yards neross thie riser,

o —Bridze meross nhollow,

E—=Iollow fifleen fEet decp nndd =ixdy fees hroad, with a small =irenm
of wiater, :

N. B.—Venango Fort i2 sitiinded an o riging picee of ground an a rich
]JEILLﬂ]'I'Il abounding with olowver, i<ty yordz wost of the Ofwio, The north
and south Polyeon, is forky=lNve yords: aod (hoe case and west Polygon thirty-
seven yards, The Bastions are boilb of saplings cight inches thick, and
thirkeon foel in length, sot stockade fashien, Part of the Cortadns are of
hewn tlmber, lald leogthways upon one apother which alse makes ope side
of the barracks,

MNOTE,—1The above is Lhe exmdl dezor piion of the BFrench o az civen
o1 B mpegin of the aneient map.  The enelizh Forl was  Loead ool Al
tifty et morth of the Frenol sow=mill,



HISTORICAL SKETCH

F

VENANGO COUNTY,

PENNSYLVANIA,

VENanao CoUunty, althongzh ovganized at a later period than
many of her sisters, has veb a history that is full of thrilling futerest.
In many of its features it borders on the romantic. The beginning
of the century that iz just closing foond this region covered with its
primeval forest. The Indiun had hisz home here, and what little of
civilization had been seen in earlior davs under the Fronch rale had
vanished.

Buat we will find it interesting to go hack a fow vearz and noticoe
some of the incidents connected with the movements of the French
in their determination Eo hold possession of the Valley of the Missis-
gippi. This will take us back to the year 1749, The French hased
their claims on the original discoveries of MARQUETTE and LA SALLE,
together with their constenetion of the treaties of Ryaswiek, trecht
amd Adx la Chapelle.  As early as the beginning of the eighteenth
century, Baxcrorr tells ns that, “ Not n fountain babbled on the
west of the Allecheny, but was elaimed as belonging Lo the French
Empire.” Later they seem to have claimed all west of the Alleghe-
ny Mountaing, In pursnance of thizs claim, in the vear 1748, (FALLI-
sONIERE, Governor of Canada, sent CELEROX to bury leaden plates
at different points, along the line from Lake Erie to the Mizsissippi,
as ovidences of this claim. One of these plates was buried at this
place, near the mouth of French creek. Tt bove an inscription in the
French language, stating that they had * Baried this plate at the con-
Muence of the To-ra-da-koin, this 20th July near the viver Ohio, oth-
wige Deantiful River, as a monoment of renswal of possession.™

This plate was not permitted to vremain long in its little bed, as
it waz stolen by the Indians and taken to the State of New York,
that *the devilish writing,” az they ealled it, might be interpreted
to them.
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I‘_[. wid then resolved toerect aline of Forts extendinge from Lake
Frie to the lower Ohio. Fort Presque Isle was bullded at Erie, L
Beeuf at Waterford, and Machanlt at thiz plaee, The two formes
wero eompleted in 17538, the latter was commencol in the fall of that
year and completed early in 1754, The Indians seem at first to
have been unwilling to have o Foet erected here. To overcome their
seruples a Frenchman by the name of JoNCaireg was sent to propitiate
them. We find hiz name mentioned frequently in connection with
this place. He was a wily, plansible and shvewd man, and wonld
hawe made a gpood politician ot the present day.  ITe had been adopt-
ed by the Indians, won their confidence, and nnder the plea that the
new building was to be a trading honse for thelr convenience, was
permilled o commence operations.

Undoubtedly the first white man who located in Venango Coun-
ty wos JouN Frazien, o Scotchman.  He was o gunzmith and temwl-
er. In the year 1755, Epwarn SHIrPEN, of Laneaster, in writing
to Governor James Hasminrox, says of him and this place: * We-
ningo is the name of an Indian town on Ohio, where Mr. Fragien
has had a ponsmith shop for many years. It iz sitnate abont cighty
miles up the said river bevond Locatown ™

WhenJoNoAIRE came to commence the erection of the Fort hoere,
he drove Frazies ont of hiz honse and tool possession. 1L was at
this house that Grorce WasmmNeToxR had the Bunons interview with
JONCAIRE in December, 1753, There iz no evidence that the Fort
here was peenpled ot the time of WasameaTow's visit, for he speaks
ot finding the French colors raised over Frazien'’s honse,  We wonld
like muneh to know now jost where that was loeate:l, bat its site 1
forgotion forever.

At that interview the Frenclinan was thoronghly outgenceral-
ed by the young Amervican. Whisky was produced, with the in-
tention of gelting the Indians and the American youth onder its in-
fluence.  Bat the results were that while the Indians beeame drunk-
on, WASHINGTON remainad perfectly sober, and picked the brains of
the half-dronken Frenchman of all their secrets,  He found out the
plans of the French without execiting the suspicions of the soldiers.
The service commenced by Georce WasamNGroy in this region, at
twenty-one years of agpe, was the berinning of hiz ealture for the
avents of the Revolutionary War.

Tha Fort here secms to have been completed in April, 1754, un-
der the superintendence of Captain Jowcarrg, It waz not an clab-
orate work, bat suited to the eireumstances of the ense. 1t was eall-
o Machault, aftera celebrated French linancier and politician,  The
name is not a familiar one here, but in every instanee in which the
Fort 12 spoken of Ly the French anthorcitios, sithor here or in Cansda,
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it is called Machaunle, By the English it was usvally ealled the
French Fort at Venango,  Althoagh grave donbts existed until re-
cently ns to its oxact location, yet facts have been brooght to light
recently, that fix the site beyond all controversy. Ies exact location
was on the bank of the Allegheny, aboot sixty rods south of the mouth
of French ereek.  Elk street runs divectly throngh it, and Sixth street
nearly tonches it on the south.

An ancient decument deseribes it in this wise: It is sitoated
on o vising piece of ground, in arvich bottom abounding with clover,
zixty yards west of the Olio.  The north and soath polygon is forty-
five yards, and the east and west poly gon thirty-seven yards, in per-
imeter.  The bastionz ave buoill of zaplings eight inches thick and
thirteen feet high, set stockade fashion. Parts of the curtains are
of hewn timber, laid lengthwize apon one another, which also
makes one side of the barracks.” Inside the Fort were six ranges
of harracks, two stories high, with stone chimneys.  Outside were
also lonyg ranges of barracks for soldiers.  The magazine within was
cased with carth to the depth of three foet.  On the little stream just
below eighth street, where the English Fort was afterwards built,
was o saw-mill, the machinery of which had been brooght from
Canada, if not from Francs.

The Fort was one hundeed and five feet in length and seventy-
five feet in bresadth, excluzive of the bastions,

To this description all allusions in the Fronch records correaponid.
Captain Pouvcnor, Chief Engineer of the forces in Canada, says in
# letbor: *¢ We have o small meun Fort on the Ohie” A French
prisoner, STEPHEN CHAUVIGNERIE, taken in Eastern Pennsylvania,
gays: * Fort Machault is & wooden Fort filled op with eacth,” and
Porther states that they had **six awivel-guns, or wall pieces,” and
that the whole ground embraced aboot two acros,

At this point there were sometimes as many #s one thousand
men. A large foree had assembled here in July, 1759, 4o make an
attack on Fort Pitt, o recover what they had lost in Fort Do (uesne,
when intelligence came that Fort Niagara was heseiged, and orders
tor evacoate niul hasten thither te the resene. The creek was too low
to convey their effects by boat, and there was no transportation by
laned, boyond porsonal bageare,  Bo, presents were distributed with
a lavish hand to the Indians. Grim warriors were seen strafiing
alt in licand eonts and bats, without other clothing, and dusky
maidens were rich with red blankets, worn shawlwise, and gaody
with immenso strings of boads, The property was collected into the
Fort, set on fire, amnd all that wonld barn was redoced to ashes.—
Thus, after a possession here of five and a half years, the French
elnim wias abandoned forever.
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The aunthority on which this deseription and location of Fort
Machault is based, iz & map of the Fort and adjacent tervitory, re-
cenfly bronght to our knowledgze. IE was found amongst the pa-
perg of the Surerrx family, bronght to western Peonsylvania in
1825, Tt is a well-known fact that Enpwann Sarerex, of Laneas-
ter, grand-father of Jodge Surerex, formerly of this Jodieial Dis-
trict, was, doring the French oceupation here, the confidential ament;
of Governor James Hasivrox, and infimately conneccted with mat-
ters pertaining to the stroggle here,  In Aoguast, 1753, we find him
forwarding a letter from Joux Frazieg, the pioneer trader heve, to
Governor Iaminrox, in which occur thess words: * Tlere iz en-
closed the dranght of the Fort the French built the other side of
surar creek, not far fom Weningo, where they have eicht cannon.™

Now, although this was probably not the Fort at thiz place, yet
it shows that Mr. SHIPPEN was connected with matiers relating to
Forts and military affairs here, and the probability is that throngh
him the plan of Fort Machanlt was oblained, that has come down
to our day. '

We have not only an exact deawing of the ground plan and de-
seription of the Fort, hut the distances and bearings of the adjacent
hillz. These hills arve just above the stone quarey, near the Gas
Works., Attached to the hills are the following nota:; < A hili 5.
75* W., two hundred and twenty voards from the Fort, near sixty
yards hizh. A hill K. 507 Wesl. three handred and forty yards from
the Fort, abont seventy-five yards high.” To test the matter a com-
pazz haz been sef at the point described as the site of the Fort, and
found to correspond very nearly to the bearings siven in the anno-
tations. The orizinal plan is in the possession of WiLniax Rey--
KOLDS, Hsg., of Meandville, Pennsylvania,

Nothing can exeeed the energy and perzeverance with which
this French ¢lam was pushedd.  They labored nnder mreat difficalties.
All their snpplies, armament and material of war, were brought from
Coanada, The vouls was by boat to Frie; then caried across the
country to Waterford, fifteen miles; then flonted down French creek
to this place, They had the fviendship of the Indians, bot these an-
serupnlons creatues were constantly levying blackmail upon them.
The last time the Fort was reinforced here, by men and provisions,
it was from Kaskaskia, Illinoiz, by the Mississippi, Ohie and Wabash
rivers, then across to Lake Erie and so by Fort Le Boeuf and French
ereck.  This was only a few days before the finul evacuation.

The effort was a bold one, and the chergy commensurate to 1t
bt Providence had some better things in store for this country, and
so the vigion faded, and the lilies of France withered to bloom no
more south of the Lakes and the St Lawrence.
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A elaim has been get np for another French Fort on the opposite
side of French creck at the month. Such a Fortis said to be marked
on an old map in Quebes.  Also, in one of the French despatches,
Machanlt iz said to be built “* one-half on the Ohio and one-half on
the Tes Beenfs.” DBut there is a mistake in the matter. No French
writer ever speaks of more than one Fort. Nor do the Englizh.—
The earliest settlers came here less than thivty years after the aban-
donment of the conntry by the French, and they found not a trace of
any military works on the Point,  The expression, half on the Ohio
and half on Les Boufs, probably means that the Fort was designed
to cover both streams.

A relic of the French Fort was found sboat forty years ago, in
the shape of a four-pounder cannon. Tt was dug from the bank in the
neizhborhood of the Fort.  The trunnions had been knocked off, the
gun spiked and laid away to itz long sleep. No donbt other sim-
ilar pans are buried in the neighborhood, as the Freneh wera unable
in their haste to remove them. This pun was afterwards repaived
and used for patriotic purposes, until on one oecasion in excessive
patriotizm it was loaded too heavily, and was blown to pileces.

The next chapter finds us under English rale. In 1760, a now
and much more substantial Fort was erected by the English
Govermment. The site chosen was just below the mouth of French
ereck, at the junction of Elk and Eighth streets. It was composed of
heavy, substantial earthworks. According to the plan of the town
in the oflice of the Surveyor General, it had bastions at the corners
and also in the mid:dle of the cortains.  The cential work was eighty-
eight feet square.  Outside of this was a ditch twenty-four feet wide,
and ontzide of this the embankment.

We cannot tell how extensively this Fort was garrisoned. We
know bat this:  In the year 1763, it was commanded by Lisutenant
GorpeEN. At this time Poxrtiac, that grand old Sachem, was organ-
izing his forees for o simaltanecus attack apon every Fort from De-
troit to Pittsburgh.  The attack was made, and every Fort but three
fiell into the hands of the BRETY. Forts Pmsque Izle and Te Boeaf
wore lnken by assanlt, and Fort Vinango, as the English work was
called, by stratagem. The Indians were playing ball in the neigh-
borhood, and oecasionally knocked the ball into the enclosure.  Ofh-
taining leave to o in for the ball, they finally made a rosh through
the oate, massacred the earvison, amd (ortored Lientenant (xORDEN
aver # slow five antil relieved by death. They then set the Forl on
fire. ]

The sites of both these Forts give abondant evidence of their
destroction by fire. Melted glass, bits of burned fron and burned
stones, were fonnd at both places by the early settlerz.  On the site
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of the French Fort large numbers of singularly formed scalping
knives wers found that had passed through the fire, Coarse glass
beads were nomerons that had been desiened to frade to the Indians.
A number of grape-vines of a pecaliar kind were found in the neigh-
borhood.  These, no doubt, had been bronght from France,

Underneath the earthworks of the English Fort was recently
found an English half-penny of the date of 1740, There was also
found in the neichborhood a medal struck to commemorate the vie-
tory of Admiral VERNON af Portobello.

The lasi vestize of both these Forts has passed away.  Wall and
fortress and battress and bastion have been leveled down,  The spirit
of the present has croshed out the past.

The thied chapter brings us under the United States role.  In-
dependence has been achieved.  We are within the century whose ex-
ploits we ave celebrating. :

In the Jpring of 1787, a company of United States soldiers, un
der Captain Hawr, was sent up from Pittsborgh to erect o Fort for
the protection of possible setflers. The site wons a novel one, It
waz on the zonth bank of French ereck, just above the upper bridge,
Otter street vons through it. Tt was not & very formidable work,
[t was ahont one hundred foet zgqoare, with bastions at the angles,
and surrounded by a ditch, oatside of which was a line of pickets, or
pine logs, some zixteen feet in hight. In this Fort a garrison of
abont one hundred men was kept antil 1796, when it was abandoned
for a mew site. This was on the cresk botbom, a little above the
month. Thiz new work waz a strong wooden building, a story and
a balf high, and thirty by thirty-six feet square. It was surroundad
by a line of pine pickets, but had no arrangement for eannon.  The
Fort was garrisoned by soldiers until about 1799, when they were
withdrawn and the building nzed in the interests of peace.  These
United States works were known, the fivst as Fort Franklin, the lat-
ter as *° the Old Garri=on.™  The last traces of them have now pass-
ed away.

In 1795, an act was passcd by the Legislatore to lay ount a town
at the mouth of French creek, on land that had been resorved by the
State. The provisions of this act were carried out by General Win-
LIAM IRVINE and ANDREW ELricort, the same season. The plan
of the town we have now before ns. With its fature history, and
that of the county, we are now to spoeak.

The County of Venango was erected by act of Assembly, March
12, 1800, thourh not organized for Judicial purpeses antil April 1,
1805. That portion of its territory east of the river waz taken from
Liyeoming county: that on the west from Allesheny county. In
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1830 its proportions weve enrtailed by the formation of Clavion eoun-
iy, and in 1866 by setting off a portion of its terrvitory to Forest.

The ancient name of the river now called Allegheny, was Ohlo,
or, as the French called it, ** La Belle Riviere,” Beauntiful River.—
French creek, in Correx's statement, is ealled ** Beenffs.” On the
leaden plate buried by Crererox, it is called Toradakoin, The
French invarviably called it the River Aux Beafs. In one of the
French despatches it iz said that it was called by the English Ve-
nango River. At the time of WaAsmINGTON'S visit here, he re-chris-
tened it French ereek, by which name it has been known ever since.

As to the name of the Indian town anciently located hers, Cow-
rEN called it Ganagarahhare. In Mr. SBnirrrs’s letter to Governor
HamrinroN, it is called Weningo. Tt was then said to be an old
town. In later yvears it was spelled Wenango, then Vinango, and
still later Venango. The latter has become the permanent way of
spelling ik As there werediflerent tribes of Indians in this locality,
this may have given oveasion to different names, meaning the same
thing, sz in the case of the names given to the river by the French
and Indians, There is an old tradition that the name Venanoo was
derived from a valgar figore earved on a tree near the banks of the
skream; buk the old name of the villaze, Weningo, being much older
than thiz alleged tradition, the presamption is fair that Weningo
was the root from which the present Venango sprang.  The name
has been so popunlar that it haz beenveduplicated in two of the neigh-
horinge counties.

The first settlement of the Connty was attended with diffienliy.
The Indians were for many years quite hostile, regarding the white
settlers as innovators of their natural rights. The first scitloment
wias madeat Franklin, GEORGE POWERS ¢ama in 1790, and bagan as
an Indian trader. A few others followed him, but with great cantion.
About this time the women and childven were sent down from Mead-
ville for safety.

In 1794, ArExanpEr MeDowWELL cune outas a Deputy Surveyor,
but found the Indianz quite hostile. They had that year attacked a
hoat on the river and killed two men.  Two men had also been kill-
ed about twenty miles south of Franklin, The same summer, CoRx-
PLANTER notified all surveyors to leave the woods, as alber the 13th
of September they might expect to be attacked. The next vear,
the same alarm prevailed.  Some were soeking refuge in the Fort.—

There iz every reazon for supposing that a plan was on foot, on
the part of the Indians in 1794, for the total destroction of the white
settlers in this county. DBut there was no PoxNtiac to manage affairs
for them. CoORXPLANTER was the principal man. Bui he hesitated
to carry ont the plan, if he was not really opposed toit. He had a
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warm feeling for the white man, out bis people ** had blood 1a- their
eyes." They were smarting under real or imaginary diffiedities,
and were determined to act on the offensive.

We have a deposition of Daxren Baxsow, dated June 11, 1794
“Thizs deponent further saith. that the Sraxpinc SToxE, a . Chief
of the Onondago’s, also informed him at Fort Pranklin, that he
thought the times would seon be bad, and prezzed him very maoch to
leave Fork Franklin, and assisted him in paeking op his goods, et ;
that from what he had seen and heard from other Indianz, he has
every reason o belisve the account to be troe; that seven white
men came down the Allecheny 2 few days ago to Fort Franklin, who
informed him that the Indians appeaved very surly, and had not
planted any corn on the river, at their towns," :

Captain Denyy, who was in command at Fort Franklin at the
same date, had similar forebodings, He sayz: *“Upon summing
up the whole, we have not a shadow of doabt but that a plan was
formed o destroy all the posts and settlements in this quarter,”

On June 20th, Mr, Broworr writez in vegard to the Fort herve:
“On my arrvival, the place seemend so defenceless, that, with the con-
earrence of Captain DExXxY, and the officer commanding at the Fort,
we remainad there some time, and employved the troops In rendering
it more tenable. It may now be considered as defenzible, provided
the number of men is ingreased.  The grrison, at prosent, consists
of twenty-five men, ons-half of whom are nntit for duty, and it is
my opinion that donbls that nomber woald not be more than sof-
ficient, considering the importance of the safety of the settlement on
Fremeh creek.™

But it is strongly probable that the danger menacine the settle-
ment arose mather from oulside Indians than from thoze ander the im-
mediate command of Corvrrawrer. The more northern tribwes
wera still in no small degree ander the inflaence of the French, who,
althongh giving np the idea of conquest, were not averse to keeping
ap an irritated feeling atmongst the Indians, in revenge for the «is-
appointment of the past.

These dangers and annoyances pradoally gave way, and there
was the promise of peace and tranquillity in the new settlement.

After the coming of General InvINg and Mr. Ertcorr with a
military escort of fifty men, tranquillity was vestored. ConyrLax-
TER waz pacified with the promise of having his landz surveyed at
once,  This 1}eing done he became the fast friend of Colonel M.
DowEeLL and Colonel DaLe, and 2o continoed during their lives.

CORXPLAXTER always exerted a strong infleence upon the minds
of the Indians. Although he was in favor of the French during
their temporary possession, yet, afler the Revolation, he was the
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firmy friend of the United States, and at the settlement here wished
but hiz rightzs. He was a just man, and had buot to see the right in
arder to pursiee il.

Serubgrass township was one of the first points in the connty set-
thed onalside of Franklin, Tooayas MoKEER cama in 17056, Ahoutb the
same time were Toosmas Bamep and Major Grost, Rosert CALVERT
and RopgErT BIipnLeE. The next year JAaMEs CrAta and Mrs, Anr-
GATL Courrer came. The latter was the mother of Rev. Joux
CovLrenr, and grandmother of Rev. J. R. CovrLTeEr, now of the
same townzhip,  Joux Wiraerve, the firat Sheriff, came in 1799.—
The first mill was built that year. In 1800, Colonel CAMPBELL'S
mills wera baile, The same vear the fivst sermon was deliversd in
the county. IE was by Rev. Winniax Moornean, at the house of
Mrs. Courrer, and within forty rods of the present Scrubgrass
churech. In 1802, the fivst ¢hureh Luilt in the connty was erected.—
It was of round logs, with esrthen floor and split logs for scats.—
This was in Scvnbgreazs. [ was 8 Presbyterian chureh. In 1803
the firat Methodist churelh was bailt; this was in the sane township.

Among the other early settlers were Micarrn MuLieEN and
JAMES Scorr, in 1796 ;- Jamrz Lesrie, Samurern. West, Winnoaa
Sroan, Joseed Repmow, Jasmes MoDowernn, Winniasm SHANNON,
Jony CrLpErRTEON, Joray Frirzy and DANIEL SAY, came in 1798,

In 1812, Davip Prrees built mills al Kennerdell., Tn 1825, the
first furnace was built in the county by Joun AxpERsON, in this
township.  The Parees’s were amongst the early sobtlors.

Richland and Rocklan:d, then a part of Frenchereek, wers
settled early in this century.  TIn Richland, the first zettlers were the
MoCazsnixsg, Rirounes, Porress, STevAnTs, McoCLaToHiEs, RUASELLS,
Camxes, Prarrs, Dowarpsoxns, BeLis, and Nioxres., Inm Boekland
were the SHawxoxns, Joureys, Warrs, Caveneres, McDoWwWELLS,
Sarrnns, Davinsods, and MarrLaxns.

Irwin township was settled o faw years later. The first eitizens
were the Ross's, Bakers, Davipsoxs, Beaonps, Hexpersons,
AYnEss, ManTivsg, and WANDERS.

The Valley of Oil Creck wasz settled from 1797 to 1802, Old
CoRNPLANTER. the Indizn Chief, owned the ficst tract above the
month of the Creek. Above him NATHANIEL CAary settled in 1800.
Next above him was Hayivrox MoCruwrock, who came in 1797.—
A part of this farm afterwards belonged to Ssyuern Havs, who
erected a saw-mill on it. Next above was Jomy MoCryrook,
where Rouseville now standz. AuveroseE BEynp was the next above.
He came in 1800, Nextabove was FrRaxcrz Bucmaxax, then JAMER
Story and hiz son RoseErt. They all came in 1800. Nextwas Frax-
oIs MoCrisrooi, who came in 1797,  On this farm Petrolenm Cen-
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tre was afterwanrds located.  All these farms will be recognixzed as
contected with the oil business in modern times.  Ahove MoCrix-
TOOKS wias SAMUEL GREGG, who came in 1800, Iis farm is the
present site of Pioncer. Above thizs Axpurew MinLer and his son
Jawes settled.  Above him were AxprEw Fremine and his brothers,
DANTIEL and Epwarn.  They camein 1802, The same vewr ARCHIE
HamirTox and Banxey GriFFIN came to make their homes and
zecl their fortunes.

The first settlement in Cherryiree township was bhegun in 1797,

Tt was by WiLLiam Reywonos and his son Joux, afterwards of
Meadville. It was on the present site of the villagse of Cherrytres.
The following year James TurHoin and Jouy STRAWIRIDGE settled
in the same neighborhood. In 1800 Joux Iewin, who afterwards
hecame one of the fiest Azsociate Judges, and SAMUEL DALE, one of
the early Survevors and Representatives, came from Novthoamber-
land county. In 1801, Samusn, JAMES, amd Novras Inwis, heothers,
gettled on farms neas the common settlement.  SaMueL Trwis was
the father of the the present Jodge Inwry. Hexry PrATHER, o
blacksmith, had come in 1800, TIn 1802, the Hasiroxs, McoFan-
DENS, FRIFFING, ARCHERS, STEWARTE, TArRes, and others came.

Along the Valley of Sugar Creck, the settlement commenced at
an early day., The land was inviting and the water pood.  THOMAS
CanteEr, RopErT BEaTTY, Jonx RopceErs, and Winniaxm CozzeNs,
all came in 1796. In the Valley of French Creek, ERENEZER Ron-
ERTS settled what iz now the Poor Honse Farm, in the yem 1796, —
Farther np the Creek the DUFFIELDS had their early home about the
game time. Tn 1793 or 4, Bricke Griuvors came; Joux GorDox in
1796, near Utiea s John Groaronre in 1798; in 179 Samuen and Apaar
Coorer: in 1798 Joan Marrin: in 1799 THoMas Russern; fol-
lowing these weore JOOKSTON and CUTCIATL; JAMER ADAME was
alzo one of the early settlers,

On the Franklin and Meadeille rosd, at the Seven Mile Spring,
Cremons settled in 1797, In the rvegion of Waterloo, Gissox was
the fivst settlor. e zald to JEWwELL. and he to Aanox McKissior,
who laid oot the village of Waterloo, in 1839,  In the same region
the TEMPLES were early sottlers.

At the month of Sandy Cresk, Sasmuen Pormoy had settled as
carly as 1798,  Fuorther up, VAN S1ekLE had settled at Bavmilton.
PATTERSON canme 1 17,

In what iz now Oakland Township, LAWRENCE DEMESEY sattled
in 1798 ; Isaac WaALLs eamoin 1804,

The MoCararonrs came to the coanty in 1803, The oldest son,
Ronent, popularly known az “‘Uncle Roserr,” had preceded the
family, coming in the fall of 1802, The family settled in Sogar-
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ereek township, abont five miles from Franklin, on the Dempseytown
road.  Jacon Wirrmaw and Jonx Luraer had settled there hefora
them. Roperr MoCaosmost died November 15, 1875, in the ninety-
third year of his amre,

Wricntam Coxyery, who afterwards reprezented the connty in
the Legislature and was an Associate Jodge, came to the county in
1804, He died May 23, 1871, in the ninety-fonrth vear of hiz age.

In othor portions of the connty there were settlers reaching bhack
as far az the beginning of the centory.

In Cranberry township SAMUEL POWELL was an estesmed and
influnential citizen.,  Farther west were the HEXDERSONS, SIMOOXES,
MeCraraxs, Woanws, Apams’s, and others.  In 1803, GRORGE
MoCLenoasp came to Sandy Creek. He afterwards moved fo
Franklin. SavuriL PrLuMiEnr was here in 1808, Pmne Houvsen
was also one of the pioneers,  After the war of 1812 qguite an influx
of population came firom Fastern Pennsylvania.

The public boildings of the county have no® been numerons.—
The county was organized for Judicial purposes in 1205, bat was for
a time without Court Honse or Jail. The first Coort was held in 2
log honse on Liberty strect, long afterwards occupied by Mr, Duees
as a drog store. Tt was demolished in 1865 The first Court House
was bnilt in 18311, Tt was a stone boilding. Itz site was on West
Park, just opposite PLoMer's Block, A new brick Court House waa
bnilt in 1848, a little to the sonth of the present boilding. In 1869
the present fine stroctore was erected,

The Old Garrison on the bank of the Creek was nsed as a
Jail from 1506 to 1519, when the first boilding for this parpose was
evecterd, It was a goaint, fonny looking building and ztood near the
site of the present Coort TTouse. The material was stone, bat not
very formidable looking for a prison. On the somthern end there
wis & vard abonb twenty fest squore, surrounded by a stone wall
perhaps twelve feet hizh. Here the prisoners were let out to breathe
the fresh air. On eirens days they could sit on the top of the wall
and see the show, as the canvas was nanally pitched in the neigh-
borhood, The eells of thiz prison were lined with oak plank, some
five inches in thickness, There was 1 well in the jail yard. In
18053, a new prizon, with Sheriff’s honze in front, was erected on
Lk street, fronting South Park.  The prison was of stone taken from
the locks of the old canal. In 1868, this prison was remodeled and
made more secnre.

There have heen two Academy bnildings., The first was built

g0 sixty years ago; the second about 1850, The latter building
15 now owned and ocoupied by the Evangelical Chureh.
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At the laying out ef the town, lands were reserved for parpo-
sez of eduention. Two thonsand seres had been set apart for town
and school purposes.  Some of these Academy lands ware sold and
the proceeds used for building an Academy, the benefits of which
ghonld acerne to the entive coonty. By this means the Academy
wiis kept in operation for many years, and was productive of zood.

But the fres sthool svatem bagan o interfers with the prosperity
of the Academy. Taxes were to be paid for s¢hool purpozes, and
the taxpayers natorally desived to receive the benefit of them, Amnd
Just in proportion as the greade of the public schools was vaised, in
the same proportion did the patronage of the Acwlemy decline, —
Finally it was abandoned and passcd into the hands of the Divectors
af the Public Schools.

Tha only remaining Connty bnilding is the Poor Honse. [vis
situated on French Creck alrout two and one half miles above Frank-
lin. Tt is & brick building and erscted at the eost of aboat one hand-
rod thoosand dollars. It was finizhed in 1370.

The Connty was for five yeas connected with Warren, Erie,
Merveer, Butler and Crawford eounties, for Jadicial purposcs, with
the seat of justice at Meadville, Judege Avnisow presiding. The
first Judge appointed for this Distriet was Jrsse Moore, He held
the office until 1825, and was succeeded by HENRy SHierry, until
1839, He was succecded by N. B, ELoren; suceseded by Gavronn
Couron, ALEXANDER MoCamsoxT, Joserir Burrmarox, Jomyw C.
Exnox, J. 8. McCapmoxt, GLexx: W. Scorienn, JAMEs CAMPBELL,
Isaac G Gorpow and.Jonx Tronkey.  In 1839, Janes Tooumeson
was appointed Jodge of a Dhstrict Court that incladed Venango.—
This Court was limited to five years.

The firat Associate Judres of the connty were Jawes E. IIER-
rox, Trosas MeKes, and Jouxs Inwix. They were suceceded by
Bicmmarn Inwix, RonerT MITCHELL, JAMES KINNEAR, B, A. PruM-
ER, Boeery Crogs, Davio Pacees, Samoen Hays, J. H, SmuLey,
W. W Davipsox, ALExaxper Hovesaw, Josoora Davis, ROBERT
Lameerrod, Winniasm Conrnery, R, S, McCoramick, and JaMes L.
CORNELY.

The first Sherifl was Jonxy Wirnerve, of Scruberass; suceedod
by Jory HAMILTON, ANDREW DBOWMAN. ARNOLD PLUMER, ARTHUR
Rosinsow, in 1828; Sasmurn Havsg, in 1832 AnkExasper MoCap-
MONT, in 1833: Jouw Evaxs, in 1839; J. W. SnueanT, in 1844;
Samuerl Paiees, in 1847, and others.

The first Prothonotary was WirLiam Moore. e was snceeed-
ed by ALExaxpir MoCanMmoxnt, AxprEw Bowaray, Avxon Proma-
ER, G. W. ConxgLy, and others.
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In 1857 the offices of Prothonotary and Register were divided.
The first Prothonotavy after the division was R. L. Cocarax; the
firat Register and Recorder was Dir. N. I). S¥oWDEN.

The first Court Crier was Jous Morrizon. He had opened the
ligst Courts in Mercor, Warren and  Buatler eonnties., He learned
that wonderful speech with which the Courts are opened from Colo-
nel Dare. e held his honors long, and died in the ninety-eighth
vear of hisage. Hiz portrait, painted by Jouy Coxsox, is still pre-
gerved in the Court House.  He was saccoeded by Ronertr McoCArn
soNT and he by Borgrr LyrLe, the prezent incambent.

The fest member of Congress representing the District was
JOHN (ALBRAITH. He represented it in 1832-4 and 8. ARwoLD
Prusmes represented it in 18336 and 40; Sawvrr. Hays from 1542
to 1844,

In the State Legislatore, Colonel SamueLl Dare was the first
Representative from the county. He was elected fivst in 1807, and
re-elected annually antil 1813, SamueErn Havs represented it in
1516-17; and WiLLiam CoxNNELY in 1819-20.

AnNoLp PLuMERr was at one time Marshal of the Western Dis-
trict. He was alzso State Treasurer and Canal Commissioner Gen-
eral SaMuEL Hays was also Macshal of the Western District.  Dr.
GrorcE R. Esey was Auditor Geneval,  Jasmes Ross SxowpEN was
first, State Treasurer, then TMrector of the Mint at Philadelphia, af-
terwards Prothonotary of the Supreme Court. James Toomresox
and Jonyw C. Kxox, were both elected to the bench of the Sopreme
Conrt of the State.

The pablic has not been slow to recognize merit in our poblic
men. Al the record of these pablic men has been nniformly zood.
It will compare favorably with the record of any sel of men in any
period of the countey’s hiztory.,  And there has been the opportunity
of judeing. Old Venango has always had her share of the public
offices, and her county seat is well entitled to be called * the nursery
of great men.*

The first chorch organized in the county wasealled Lower Sandy.
It was a Presbyterian churveh and was organized in 1800, near Utlca.
WiLLiam Wyrie was the first pastor.

Jadmns Apams boilt the fivst woolen mill in the eonnty. This
was at Utica. At the first sertlement the women manufactored the
cloth witheut the aid of machinery. They carded, spun and wove,
colored and fulled the fabric, all within themselves. And when this
was done they made the elothing, withont the aid of tailors or fashion
plates,

The first setilers, both men and women, made a brave record, in
their straeoles for 1ife and fortane, here.  And it will be wall il we,
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their descendants, make as pood nse of our advantages as they did,
Their names are placed on record ; and let their virtues in like man-
ner e perpetoated.

The people who settled this county when it was a wilderness ave
worthy of all honor and kind remembrance. A late writer has said :
“ A more Intelligent, virtnous and resolate clazz of men never settled
any country than the first settlers of western Pennaylvanin; and the
women who shared their sacrifices were no leas worthy.”  They eame
here, many of them, in poverty.  They found little bot hardships for
very many years, They found the land covered with timber.  There
were for many years neither mills nor factories, With their own
strong arms they muast cat down the forest and fenee the felds and
build log eabing. Some of the first zettlers lived on potatoes chicfly
the first yvear of their coming.

An old veteran, out to the west of us, who came here abont the
beginning of the century, thus relates his experience:  * Me and the
woman eame out on foot, driving one little eow, and earrying all onr
elfocts on our backs. The fivst yoar we eal potatoes and slept on
rood elean leaves gathered up in the woods.,  The first wheat [ rais-
ad, T took & bushel on my hack, walked to Pittsbareh, got it grotand
and earried back the Aour.”  And this was no oncommon experience,
Sometimes they pounded their corn in mortars cnt ont of stumps.

some of our first setflers on French Creek took their wheat and
corn in canoes and skills up to Meadville to be gronnd,  They were
obliged to live within themselves. Clothing was made at home.—
Shoes and hats were manafietured in the honsehold,  Out on Sogar
Creek ANDREW BowMAN commenced tanning for himself and neigh-
bors by laying down his hides in tronghs eat from chestnok frees.
This was about zeventy years ago,

Honses were built with vound logs, with the cracks chinked and
daubed. Theroofs were covered withelapboards split from astraight
red cak. The floors were of pancheons split from the trecs.  Some-
times there was neither sawed lomber, nor nail, nov bit of ivon in the
entire building. The chimney was made of split sticks covered with
mortar made of clay and straw.

These houses did not cost muneh,  The neighbors tarned ont and
agsigted each other. A mising was a orand oceasion. Tt hronsht
the people together. They came with their axes, cut off the logs,
notched the corners and Iaid them ap, split ont the clapboards and
puncheons, and by evening the honze was completed. If they could
not procure glass, muslin or oiled paper answered the purpose of
rlass for windows.

The forniture too, was of the most primitive kind. At firat the
bed was a kind of ank made arainst the wall of the eabin; then
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home-maide arrangement of timber, with el bark cordage, and the
bedstend  was supplied.  The first chairs were made at home. A
rude frame work was constrocted and the seat made of splints, ob-
tained by ponnding strips of black ash ontil the growths separated,
and with a liltle dressing were resdy for the parpose.

Then gradually mechanies came in and the arts of civilization
ministered to the comfmt and convenience of the people.

The early settlers were eminently social in their habits, Neces-
aity and sell-protection helpad to make them so.  They not only as-
aembled to boild each other’s houses, but they had * frolies,” as they
termed them, to chop down the trees; they had loggings, and flax-pall-
ings, and seatchings, and hoskings, The women had their frolics;
thelr quiltings, thelr spinnings, their hatehelings, and other deviees of
handicraft.

In those days they id not aspire o carpets.  Rag sewing, in
which ladies have dJdelizhted in modern times, was nnknown., Bat
in other spocies of feminine industey they excelled.  Flax was made
inko linen for men’s wear and for women's wear. It was the choice
and only covering for the tabla; it was the material for sheets, for
toweling, anid was bleached white as the snow of winter,

These frolies brought the people together, They cultivated so-
cinbility.  They promoted cood foeling, and in the absence of ma-
chinery were often the only means of carrying on the operations
of life. They were the practical exemplification of the maxim:
“ In nnion there iz strength.”

As far as the opportunity was afforded these carly settlers wore a
ehurch-going people.  The relizions meetings might be held in the
cabing of the neizhbors, in some early constroeted barn, or in the
leaf shelterad forest. We have seen that as early as 1800, a Prashy-
terinn congregation was gathered at Lower Sandy, near Utica, and
in Serubgrass another was formed two yvears afller, and o Methodist
church erected in 1803, Bot in addition to these we hear of the
Presbyterian missionwy coming throngh the settlements, preaching
where he could find hearers and going on his way to seek now dwell-
ers in the wildernesz, The Methodist civenit rider often sounght the
new conrtries, extending his éivenit until it should embrace the
mo=t distant dwellers in the forest.

Amwd the old fathers tell us what diligence was used to attend
these preachingz in the forezst.  When word eame that theve would he
preaching on o given Sabbath, men would make it their business to
o far and near to notify their neighbors. When a minizter, Rev.
JAMES SATTERFIELD, announced his coming to s neighboring town-
ship in 1801, a few men made it their business to notify every family
in the township,
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And they came from great distances, They traveled on Lorse-
back and on foot. On special oceasiang of Sacraments or camp-
meetings, they came five, ten, and even twenty miles. - They were
not particular about their dress.  Clean linen, even though it was of
eoarse textore, was thought to be becoming and proper. Men came
without thew coals in summer, or carvied theor on theie arms.  'Fhe
young women would walk and carry theie shoes and stockings antil
within sight of the mecting place, when they wonld sit down on a
log and put them on, and so present @ decorous appeavance at the
preaching,

Kindness and hospitality were prime vivtoes those days. When
a neighbor killed a deer or a bear, he always felt it his duty to send
a piece of the game aronnd to the neavest neighbors; and they in
turn returned the favor.  The families who lived nearest the place
where these relizion: meefingz were held, felt it their duty to
emberiain those who came from g distance.  Often sueh honses wold
have the entive floor covered with extemporized beds.  And all was
done in the most free and decorous manner,

Honesty and troth and fair dealing were prime virtnes. No
wonder they did not nead courts of law to settle diffienlties, as we
find that no court was held in the county until 1805,

The military record of the county has been rood. In the war
of 1812, doring the threatened invasion of Erie by the British, every
man  that conld possibly be sparved  from home duties, went  thither,
They were connected with a regiment of which Racen Marux, of
Meadville, was Colonel, and SavMurn DALk, of this county, was
Lientenant Colonel. This regiment was ealled out again in 1314, at
the thme of the burning of Buffalo. There i an intevesting fact in
this connection relative to the old Chief Corsprayter. On the
pews of the war, he came to Franklin to see his old  rlend Colonel
DATE, and enquire into the canse of the strife.  When the matter
was explained to him, he said: * Well, yon are going to the war, in
defense of the conntey; I will go with you with two hendred braves.
The conntry  has been kind to me, and it is but right that T shounld
lead my young men to her defense,*

Colonel DALk informed him that it was not necessary that he
ghonld go; itwas bot o small matter.  Bat the Chief insisted that he
shonld zo; the corn was planted and he conld go just as well as not.
He was only satisfied by Colonel DaLE promizing to notify him when
any necessity shouald arise requiring his services.

Iu the Mexican war a few soldiers from thiz conuty were engag-
ed.  Several officers in the regalar avmy were in the serviea. Havs,
RExo, Bowman and MeCLeELLaxp, were in active serviee throogh
the entive war.
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In the recent war of 1861-5, the connty was well represented.
Several entive companies were raised here; and a large number
went in squuds, and as individoals,

The Soldiers’ Monament, standing in South Park, containg some
four hundeed names of our dead soldiers, who died on the field of
hattle, in prisons, in hospitals, and at home; who died of wonnds
received in battle, of sickness incorred in camp, of starvation in the
hands of the enemy. They died for themselves and for ns.  They
died that thiz grand Government of ours * should not perish from
the earth.™

Amongst onr dead braves, whom we are proad to remember
this day, are Brigadier (zeneral ALEXANDER [Tavs, who fell in the
terrible battle of the Wilderness, May 5, 1864; Major General J. L.
RExNG, who Ffell at the battle of Sonth Mountain, September 14, 1862,
Major W, B, Mays, Captain WinLiad Evaxs, Lientenants J. D). and
5.0, Cocaray, GrorerE W, Brriowrey, and others, whon 16 wonld
b pleazant to mention.

Theze all have their namaes written on that marble shaft that the
people of this county so well love to garland with flowers at onr an-
nual May decoration.

Many of them slecp in unknown graves; graves unmarked by
gbone or cenotaph; rraves that will ba forover hidden until the volce
of the archangel and the framp of Gon shall awake all earth’s sleep-
ers from the dust of the earth; bat they are held in grateful re-
membrance to-day.

And we would not forget Brizgadier General A. B. MoCavmosT,
s0 mallant in the field, so0 genial in social life. 30 noble in heart, who
haz g0 recently gone from amongst ns.  5till more recently, Colonel
James K. KErr has been called away, and must not be forgotten.

And there arve gallant officers and soldiers amongst us still, whose
sorvicss will never be forcotten.  They bore the brunt and storm of
battle, some of them throngh the whole of the war, then came back
to b citigens once more in the qoiet walks of life.  Some of then
bear the marks of honorable warfare npon their persons. There are
cmpty slesves and halting limbz that tell us of the ficey charge, of the
“ immminent deadly breach,” and of the leaden and iron rain that filled
the air with deadly horrors.  These brave men are here amongst us
to-day, and are worthy of all honor.

And while these lanrel-decked hills that environ our connty seat
shall stand, let that Monnment, that tells of Venango's contribation
to the death-roll of patriotism, be cherished, and honored, and deck-
od with flowers on each returning May. And let all our soldiers,
dead or living, be honoved in the hearts of their fellow-eitizens for
their work in our behalf,
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The history of the Newspaper press forms an interesting chap-
ter in the history of the county. For years it had a constant stroe-
gle, huot at Iast it is well patronized.  The lirdst newspaper was
ealled The Venange Herald, established in 18205 after this was Dhe
VFenango Demoeral, in 1324 then The Devnocralis Republican; then
The Franklin Intelligencer, in 1834 then The Domospatic Adreh, in
1842 ; The Franklin Gosetfe, in 1844 The Advoesde ard Jowrnal, in
1848 The Venango Spectafor, in 1849: The Franklin Whiy Bomner,
in 1585627 The Vemange Cilizen, in 1804 and The Indepindent Press,
in 1876. These were all located at the county seat.

(il E'.‘-iLl"-.l' has had sevaral newspapers.  The O Oty Begislar was
establizhed in 1861; e Petrolesin Monthly was published there for
a time:; The (48 City Mondtor; The O ity Times, adaily paper; The
06l Cily Derddek, an enterprising and soaccessful daily, i5 issned
there; alzo The Weekly Times.

Emlenton has had its paper. The Falley Ealo, snceeaded by The
Fmilenton Times.  TPithole had its Record; Pleasantville its Evendng
News: Petrolenm Centre its fecornd; TRonseville its  Pennagfoenian,
and Reno its Times. '

There are zome files of these papers yet extant, and they velate
a personal history, as well as throw light opon the history of the
epanty. They tell of poverty and self-denial. The carly papers
were small.  The material of the office did not admit of rood worl,
and the poverty of the people did not admit of good patronage. Ik
wis not easy to make 5 good paper in those days.  Mailz came onee
a week, and then the news was slow in Indine its way. A Dmermaent
of a paper of the date of April 22, 1820, has, as one of its news items,
an account of the dael between Commodore DEcATUR and Comimo-
dore BARRON, near Washingzlon, thak ocenrred just one month hefore,
The papers of the econnty now are equal to the best in the country.

There worse two cireamstances that for many yearg retarded the
settlement of Venanzo County. The first was the possezsion of the
/ Holland Land Company. Daring the Revolation, the Colonics had
borrowed money largely from Amsterdam, In Pennsylvania this
loan was vepaid in land. The land came into the possession of the
Holland T.and Company. A large quantity of this land lay in this
county. It was in the marcket, bat so burdened with restrictions that
fow cared to settle upon it.  Bat one handred acres could be sobtlsd ;
a hoose must be bnilt, and other stipulations carried ont.

The other ciroamstanee was, that much of the land in the woest-
ern part of the connty was donated to soldiers of the Revolution.—
Theze lands were in paveels of from two to ve hondred  acres, ac-
eording  to the rank of the soldier, and were deawn by lot. Tlm:l;
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were free from taxes as long as they were in possession of the sol-
dier. Much of these lands lay without settlement for many years.

The first public improvement in the connty was the Waterford
and Susquehanna Toenpike. It was a link in the ehain of contem-
plated work from Erie across the moantains to Bellefonte, and thence
to Philadelphis.

Thizs road was laid ant lec_:ugh the gounty in the year 1818. Tt
was the scene of a large amount of travel for many years, and was
kept up as a toll road until o comparatively recent period.

During the war of 1812, French Creek was an important link in
navigation, for the conveyance of mlitary stores from Pittsborgh to
Erie. The naval armament, boat storas and other important mat-
ters pertaining to the fikting out of Perry's feet, were conveyed
by this voute,  They came up by flat boat on the Allegheny, thence
up French Creek to Waterford, and thence by land to Erie. It was
a sonres of sarprise to the British that these stores could be obilain-
ad at all, with Lake narvization interrupted. All this boating was
done by men walking backwards and pushing the boat azainst the
current.  When swift water was encoanterad they took a line forward,
attached it to o tree on the shove and wound it up with the eapstan.

The naxt public improvement was that of the * IFranklin Canal
Company.” It was fiest known as ** The French Creck Division of the
Ponnsylvania Canal,” and desicned as o link in the water communi-
eation betwesn Evie and Pitksbarzh, The plan was to bnild dams
on French Creek and thuz make slwk-water navigation between
Franklin and Meadville. The work was completed in 1833, From
some canze it was a grand fuilore. Bot two boats ever passed from
Frankhin to Meadville. Tt cost the State  xmillion and a quarter of
dollars to construct the work, and sobseqoently ﬁf‘l-j.’ thoozand dol-
lara for repairs, when the whole was abandoned.  All that now re-
maing of it iz the outlet dam, that gerves sz nomill power for the Ve-
nangn Mills.

Thiz work was commencad when the poliey of the State was to
carry on internal improvements on its own saceconné. . And jost then
canals were supposed to be the great institutions of the age. Money
was laid ont lavishly, without connting the cost, or considering its
propriety.

By the time the work was fairly completed, different counsels
hogan to prevail, and ablast ik importance fell in official view, and it
was left to to swell the number of wreecks that belong to the past.

After the partial abandonment of the worle by the State, i was
kept open for deseending navigation for zome years. There was
gtill considerable boating in the matter of lnmber, staves and shingloes
fromy Erie and Crawford eonuties, and some of the dams were kept
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in vepaiv, with the locks,  What was known as the “Big Damn,™ about
a mile above Franklin, was the last to give way. Finally, a band of
men from the npper Creek came down, armed with axes, picks, and
bevers, and thovoughly demolished the entive stroctore. It was
strongly built and seemed as though it wonld have withstood the ut-
most power of the flood, if left to the natural course of events.

It is said by engincers that the mazoncy of the locks was of a
very superior quality, and that no finer or better work was to he
fonnd in the State.

A very important featnre in the history of this county was itz
fron business. It was once thoaght o be vory  ¢lch in fron ove, and
this bnsiness was the pride and glory of the people. The bnsiness
Began to flonvish in 1842, under the cherishing influence of a Bvor-
able tarifi. Tn 1847, there were no less than seventeen furnaces in
Blast, producing in the arrregate twelve thousand tons of pig-icon
per annimm, valued at that time at about 8330,000. The power nsed
in all cases was water, the fuel charcoal. The consequences wern
that the timber was destroyed over a lavge portion of the connty.

Some of these firnaces nsed bog ore exelosively, producing &
tine guality of iven for foundry porposes. The amount of capital
employed coald not be estimated veadily. Credit was employeil
Iargely. Merchandizse was booght to be paid for with the mannfactur-
ed iron, and labor was paid for with merchandise. A Furnace Stora in
those days was a curiosity, and the prices at which zoods were sold
astonizhing, Everything imaginable was contained in the store.—
Prints were sold at fifty cents per yard. Molasses at one dollar and
fifly cents per gallon. A double-bitted ax sold for five dollas, and
other things in propovtion. Floor and bacon were staple articles,
and  the employvess were wholly dependent on the frnace men  for
sabzistence. The furpace men had a varied experience. Many a
farmer entered upon the business with - a comfortable property amd
left it penniless,

The amount of capital necessary to earry on one of these furna-
ees was abont 3200005 or, when the buziness was at its greatest pros-
perity, some S3400000 in the agoreste.

Another branch of the iron bnsiness was the Franklin Rolling
Mill, embracing o nail factory.  This was erected in 12843, and con-
tinued in operation nntil 1850, when the meneral failore of the ifron
business canszed it to go out of operation. The establishmoent was car-
ried on under the firm name of Nook, Daxcerriern & Co.  Some
af onr own citizens were connected with it.  About five tons of bar
iron and three of nalls were manufactured daily. The eapital in-
vested was about 360,000, The power and buildings have since been
nsed for o bavrel fmetory, tag etory, and latterly as a tannory.
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The o1l business had its eommencement in this county.  Its de-
velopment here has been like a dream of romanee and almost sog-
gestive of the Arabian Nichts' Entertainment.

Some oil springs were known on 04l Creek from the earliest set-
tloment of the eountry. The meost fameons of these were on the
Cary and McCrmwrock farms. The oil was collected by placing
blankets in the spring and wringing them out in tobs, It wns used
e medicine.

Tha fivst oil weall waz drilled by E. L. DRAKE, on 0il Creek, in
Cherrytree township., Oil was fivst strock Aogast 28, 1859, and the
wary opened up to firtane and Bune o some and  to dissppointment
anill poverty to others.  The second well was MoCLiNTOCK'S, near
Ronsaville, the third at Franklin—the celebiated Evans well, Tha
firat developments were along 0il Creek, then along the  Allegheny
andl Fremeh Creek.  Pomping wells were succesded by owing ones,
until prices came down and oil conld be bonght for a time at twenty-
five ecnts per barrel. The fivst flowing well was obtained on  the
MoELHESNY farm. Tt was in 1861, Then followed a splendid and
wonderful series of wells flowing fabulons quantities, until literally
“he rock poureid out vivers of oil.”  Thiz was followed by the FPhil-
lips well at two thonsand barrels per day.  This was followed by
the Maple Shade, Jersey, Coquette, Beed, and finally the Empire,
yielding the modest amount of three thousand barrrels per day. It
iz diffieult to determine the whole amount vielded by Venango coun-
ty during the last seventeen years. During the first six years the
prodoction was confined exeluzively to this coanty.  Abont the year
1865, developments commenced down the river below us, and the
production here has been comparatively small,  The heavy labricat-
ine ail is still confined to the region of Franklin, The GALLowar,
Feg, Lameerroxn, MoCaLson, an:d Syers farms, and the bloff over-
looking Franklin, are the main locations.

If we take the statistics of prodoction since 185, we will find
the probable amonnt of oil prodaced in the connty to have been in
the neichborhood of forty millions of barrels.  IF we take the aver-
age price ag foor dollavs per barrel, the value of the crude prodoet
will e F160.000,000.  And this is purhaps a low estimate of the ac-
tual resalt.

Thiz business has afforded employment to a lavge nomber of
men.  Strangers thronged avound the oil conntry.  They could not
be accommaodated at hotels, in any of the townzg; the public convey-
ances were overburdened. At one time it was compuated that in the
valley of (il Creek alone, there was a popalation of thirty thonsand.

New towns sprone ap like magic.  Some of them were like the
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gourd that shelteved Joxair in the entskives of Ninevel; they sprung
up in 2 night, and perished in a night.

Specolation in real estate was a prominent fentore in the enter-
priscs of the county. This was at its hight about the voar 1864, —
Therve was a large amount of worthless land lying along the margins
of the river and céreeks, that came into the markel as possible * oll
territory.?  These lands were sold at extravacant prices, and oil com
panies formed and stock issned.  The vresolt was that worthless oil
stocks flooded the conntry and impovervished many of the people.—
Bt justice to our own citizens vequives the statement, that theso oil
eompanies were uznally gotien up in the eastern cities.

The valley of Uil Creek had o romantic history during the years
1860 to 1864, The oil so plentifully prodoced must thad its way to
market chiefly by the month of the creek.  Teams suflicient could
not be procursd, and some kind of navigation mast be provided up
amil down the cresk. Buat the creek at best was an insignificant
stream. It conld not be slack-watered 20 as to afford a continuons
stage of hirh water. Resort was therefore had to nn oviginal system of
artificial navigation. Dams were thrown aciozs the creek at inter-
vals, and some old saw-mill dams presssd into the serviee, These
dams had draws in them so that the water could be let oat at will.
They were used to create what were called *F pond freshets.”  The
water was colleeted and retained so nz to make a ponid freshet alwont
twice awesk. Tho day and hour were arranged  heforehamd so that
the oil men had everything ready. The boats were filled with oil,
and the men in charge all ready for the voyame. At the appointed
hemr the upper dam waz opened.  Thiz raized the stream amd bore
with it the upper boats; then the next dam gave its tribute until =
miniature river was formed, each station swelling the nomber of
boats, antil, 25 the neouth was reached, some fwohundred boats could
b connted, eontaining in the acgreeate =ome cight or ten thonsand
barrels of Petrolenm.

The scene was very exciting at Ofl City on the advent of this
fleet of boats.  As they rmshed down, the shonting of the men, the
dashing of the waters, and often the wreek of the boats, formed a
seene that was full of interest.

The il was usaally carried in balk. It was often impossible to
prevent coliisions.  Freguently one bost wonld dash its eorner into
the side of another, crushing it like an ege-shell, when oil and oil-
men together wonlid be swimming in the water.

There were certain unwrilten ralez that reguolated this naviga-
tion. Each producer along the creek was expected to bear his pro-
portion of the expense of providing these periodical floods.  This
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was regulated by the number of lwrrels shipped.  The tariff was at
the rate of five conts per harrel.

Up stream navigation was by horse power. Two horses were
atlached to a rongh flat-boat and walked in the water in the middle
of the cregk the whole distance.  This eraft carried passengers and
Mreights.  Buot the passage was not at all desivable, exeept in cases
of necessity.

The busziness of refining oil has been earried on somewhat ox-
tengively in the county, yet not perhaps with the same success as in
other places.  Refinevies have heen carried on at Plumer, at Oil City,
at Siverleyville. at Franklin, and at other places.

The preperation of lubricating oil bas met with greater sunecess
than retining.  This is lergely carried on at Franklin, The Galena,
the Eelipze, the Amber, the Keystone, and Hendrick Works, have
been very successful, preparing a lubrieator adapted to the most del-
ieabe machinery, as well as to the common steam engine. The same
hnsiness is carried on at Rouseville.

Grreat facilities ave now enjoyed in handling the common produoct.
Half a dozen wells are coupled to the same engine.  Pipe lines con-
viry it bo some coinmon centre, and tank cars  carcy it to the sea-
board and other markets,

There seems to have boen a particalar Providenee connacted
with the dizcovery of oil in the depths of the rock. The first wells
were foond very near the sorfuce. Dnraxe's wns buot seventy foet
deep; Evans's, the zecond one bored, was bot seventy-two feet;
MoCrLmvrock's, the thivd, about the same.  These wells were found
in pockets or cavities of the rock, into which the oil had found its
way in itz apward journey to the sorface.

Had these trial wealls, particularly DrRAKE'S, been boved in al-
most any other locality, there would have been failure. No living
man would bave had the conrage 10 bore down in the solid rock fil-
toen hundred or two thousand feet, as they ave doing in modern
times. DBat the oil was there, The time had come for its distribo-
tion thronghont the carth, and nothing conld prevent its discovery, or
mar the plan of Providenes.

In the prosecation of the oil business great advantagzes have been
derived from the wse of the torpedo in ol wells It is filled with va-
rions explosive sobstances, powder, gun-cotlon, nitro-glycerine, and
other materialz, and exploded down in the sand rock.

The first idea of the use of the torpedo in this business belongs
to A. W. Baymonn, of Franklin. It was snggested by him in 1850,
In that year a torpedo was made under his directions, by filling a
long tin eylinder with gonpowder. [t was lowered into the second
well that was bored in Franklin. A common blast fose was attach-
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ed to the eylinder for the porpose of exploding it. Bt the pressare
of the water collapsed the fose and it could not be exploded.  An
effort was afterward made to procuve o batbtery to renew the attempt,
but it was unsneeessful, and the idea for a time lost sight of,  If My
Ravatonn had patented the invention he micht have reaped o eolden
harvest as the resalt. Bt fortunezometimes comes very near, with-
out bestowing her gifts,

In 1864, Colonal K. A. L. Roperrs, having conceived the zame
idea, but withont the knowledge of any former experiments, ap-
plicd for a patent for o torpedo to be psed in oil wells,  The first ax-
periment was made in Jannary, 1865, This experiment wasz sne-
cessful.  Buol it Jdil not come into seneral ase for one or bwo . years
afterwardz., It iz now vecognized az an impoctant agent in develop-
ing nil walls.

Beveral terrible accidents have attended the boziness of mann-
fctnrving torpedoes.  Magazines eontaining them liave heen blown
up at Beno, at Oil City, at Franklin, and at Sernbgrass, with fearinl
resiits,

Coal mines nre found in the southern part of the county. The
existence of these mines was unknown to the cacly settlers.  They
did not requive the coal. The land waz eovered with woodl, and
thiz waa sufficient for fuel.  As wood hegan to grow  scarce, the in-
guiry was made in vegard to the probable existence of coul.  In the
onteroppings of the hills, signs of it were found, and search revealed
Ita prosomnes,

The most thovouehly developed conl minez are in Mineval town-
ship, on the line of the Jamestown and Franklin Railroad.  Conl of
eood gquality 13 foand there in lavge gquantities. Tt is also fonnd in
good quality and guantity in the region adjoining Buotler connty;
also in Sandycreck township near Frankling and  in Cranberey
township near (il City. The veins are not heavy in any of theso
places, yob of sufliciemt waight to make the working of them pro-
fitable.

In the anclent times, the modeof travel was to oo on horzebaek:
A little Jater, persons conld go to Pittsburgh by skiff, or flat-hoat, or
valt.  Maadville and Waterford conld  be veached by skill’ or Tlat-
hoat. Il was a grand event when the first steamboat came op the
river. This was the * Doonean,” that eame in 1826, And =s it land-
ed at the bank of the river there was grand shouting and throw-
ing np of hats, on  tha parct of the peopla.  In the course of years
stenmboating became a very important business. There was n
regilar saccession of hoats called the Belle, that did a good bosi-
nezz, Thirty years ago thers were no more popnlar river men than
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Captains Jomw and Winniam Haxna., Baot as years have rolled by,
even steamboating has become slow, and its days have been number-
eul, a5 far a3 the Allegheny is concerned.

By land, coaches and hacks took the  place of horsebawk travel,
Lines of hacks ran from Franklin to Meadville, to Warren, to Clarion,
to Pifteburgh. Some of the middle-aged people will remember the
old ** hucklebarry stame,” that crossod the Sandy Creek hills, and on
to the Stone Honze and Prospect to Pittsburgh., The journey con-
tinaed through the nighl, over rough roads, with racged cartains
Napping in the winter wind, and every jolt of the hack threatened to
semd the passenger: thronrh the opposite end of the conveyance. I
the hack broke down, the loan of & fum waron was obtained and the
Jonrnay continuesl.  Bot gradoally railroads approached our county
until the advent of the oil bosiness bronght them to our doors.

Originally the mail facilities werenot good. For a time the coun-
ty wias without post vontes,  The first United States mail that came
into the connty was in 1802, It waa carried on horseback in saddle-
bepers, aned  came onceas in thres weoelks, and even then  brooght bat o
few letters. ‘The route was from Erie to Pittsbargh.  The mail ear-
rier was Mre. Asit, who was always punetonl, onless detained by
hizh waters or deep snows.

In conrse of time the teips were more frequent, but it was longz
balore the mail was earvied on wheels, Up to 1848, the county was
withont s 4_].:1,1']:.,-' neil o Facilitate the bransaction of bhasinass,

There were no banks up to 1860, The early merchants when
raing for goods, packed up their Spanizh dollars in saddle-hags,
monnted their horses and vode to Philadelphia. Long after this,
they still packed their money in their tronks, and in the staee cross-
ed the mountains, with all their funds with them.  Yet withal, rob-
heries were very rare, and this personal care of bageags comparn-
tively safe. -

The county iz well provided with banking institations for facil-
ities of exchango and the ronoral transaction of business.  The first
bank was that of R. Lansesroy & Co. This was in 1860, Since
then many others have been giganized, as the exipencies of business
seemed to demand.  Franklin has had its banks.,  After the Lamber-
ton, was the Venaneo, mereed into the Venango National, snspended ;
Firvzt National; Franklin Bank, merged into the First National; In-
ternational, Exchange, Lamberton Savings, and the Franklin Savings.

In Oil City there have besn several banks; also ab Ronseville, at
Plensantville, at Plomer, and at Emlenton. At present theve are in
active business, at Franklin, five banks; at Oil City, six; at Pleas-
antville, two; at Emlenton, one; in all, fourteen.  These all appear
to be well managed and flourishing.
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The first Railvoad completed in the connty was the Franklin
Branch of the Atlantic and Great Western., This was in 1863, It
was followed by the Jamestown and Frankling in 1367, and that by
the Allerheny Valley, in the fall of the same year. =

The popualation of the county has steadily inereased sinee its or-
sanization. In the year 1800, it was 1,130; 1810, 3,060, 1820, 4,915,
1850, DAT0; 1840, 17,900; 1850, 18.310; 1860, 25,044 ; 1870, 47,935,

The great flood of 1865 marks an important era in the history of
the county. It was in the month of March. Considerabls snow
was on the sronnd when it commenced raining.  This was on the
17th. The rain came down in torvents doring the entive day. It
was not the ordinary rain of spring, but the very heavens zecmed to
have been opened, and the erext flood to be leaping forth. '

The waters of the Allegheny and French Creck began. to rise
toward evening with great vapidity. Duoring the night the waters
began to creep np above the ordinary high water mark, and many
families, finding their dwellings invaded, wore glad to seek rofugre on
higher ground. On the morning on the 17th the sight of the river
and large crecks was awfully grand and impressive.  The cmrent
waz sweeping wildly bevond its hanks, bearing upen its bosom the
avidences of the devastation that had been committed dorine the
night. This was particularly the case on the Allerheny. It secmed
a# thongh the entive upper oil region must have haon s scene of rain,
Houses, sheds, dervicks, oil tanks, ball-wheels, barrels, and forniture,
were in dire confusion, whirling down the carrent.  Lumber, staves,
timber, farming utensils, all assisted in swelling the mighty tide of
riin.  KEven houses amd homes were torn from their foundations and
borne resistleszlyalong, with their tenants at the mevey of the waters,

(il Creek bridee, Sngarereek and French Creek, —all were swapt
away. (Hl City saffered groatly. Tha prinzipal steeets were cover-
ad with water to the depth of several feet. Many families retreated
up the steep bank, as commuonieation was ent off from the npper part
of the city, and fires were kindled to keap tha peopla comfortable,

The probabilities are that such a flood wa2 never known in this
county before.  Persons who had resided here for seventy years SV
that the great lood of 1806 did not reach to the dimensionz of this
of 1865,

Another item in the history of the connty iz the great frosts of
June 5 and 12, 1859,  The wheat and rye were just in blossom, and
there was every prospect of a bountiful harvest. But these frosts
smote the fields as with the hesom of destroction.  The evening he-
fore, nature smiled, like Eden almost, with beanty and the prospect of
plenty; but on the Sabbath morning the fields were blasted and
blackensad as thongh the breath of the siroeco had swept over them.
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A deep and heavy gloom settled over the community. The
gquacstion of beead became execedingly practical, and the fear arose
that multitndes of our citizens wonld be obliged tolewve their homes
for a warmer sky ond a more genial atmosphere.  Buot the danger
passed over.  Corn was plenty in Beypt, and means were found for
purchazing it, and the next year bronght good crops.

Whilzt this connty has not the level plains and fertile soil of
many other connties, it has yet o respectable 201l and many povtions
of it ave well adapted to agricultural pursuits. The valley of Sogar
Croek, amd parts of French Creck are not execelled hy any por-
tioms of the State. Portions of Allegheny township, Serobgrass,
Richiand, and Hockland, abound in fing farms, and richly repay the

aborz of the farmer.

Iy the vears of the lumber, fron and oil boasiness, agricalture
wis too mueh neglected. Many of the farmers turned their atben-
tion 1o lnmbering, to teaming, in connecticn with the fornaces, and
to laboring at the oil wells. Latterly many good farms have been
ahandoned to the pursnit of oil. But with propor attention, the
farmz of the connty would not be behind those of the majority ot the
aounties of the Commonwealih.

FREANKLIN.

The first netoal settlement in the county was at Franklin, In
the same place where Jouy Frazien, the Scotchman, had set him-
salf down to tinker np oldgans for the Tndizns, and te sell them new
ones, in exchange for furs and sking, in 1745 fo 1747, Grones Pow-
ERS came in 1790, to engage in much the some business, excopt the
ennsmithing.  Joux Frazier had probably bnilt his log cabin down
near the Allegheny bridge, as we find the Frenchman, JONCAIRE,
oocapying his honse whilst building Fort Machaalt. Groroe Pow-
ERS pitched his tent near the upper French Creek bridge, perhaps
Deercsanse the Tnited States Garrvizon was located there, and e desir-
ed company and protection. The town waz most probably named
after the Fout.

GrEoRGE PowEers had come here first in 1787, with the soldiars
tn assist in boilding Fort Franklin, He seems to have had zome
connection with the army otficially, that perhaps terminatod with
the completion of the Fort. He returned in 1790 with the intention of
making it his home, bringine with him a small stock of zoods in or-
der to carry on a traffic with the Indians. He became a famous In-
dian trader, and spoke the langnage of the Senecas with ease.  His
store was on the bank of French Creek, between Thirteenth and
West Park streets, a little below the upper bridze. Near this, at
the eorner of Otter and Elbhow strects, he built his stone honse in
1808, that was pulled down in 1872, This was a famous house for
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many years. It and Colonel MoDowern's stone building  were
the grand houzes, to which stranges were pointed as they  look-
od at the new town. It was used as a hotel in 1523, Mr. Pow-
ERS at first kept house with his mother. In 1802 he was mar-
ried] to o sister of AxprEw BowMax, who beeame a prominent eiti
gen of the place in after days.  He was a shrewd trader and waz on
partienlarly good terms with CorvrPrLaxTER. Bot Indianz are shrewd
too.  Om one oceasian he purchased from a hanting party a very nice
fox skin, and threw it up on the loft of his store. A lew hoors al-
torward another fine skin was bronght in and disposed of in the aune
manner, until at intervals of two or three hours through the day, a
fine skin was bronght in and sold. Snspicions were excited aml an
investigation showed that bat one skin had been in possession of  the
party, and had been guietly removed by climbing up to a back win-
dow in the loft of the store, and vesold.

Grorck Powens always claimed that he was rhe fivst white set-
lar who commencsd work in the county.  He died Apeil 2, 1345, in
the eighty-fifth year of his ame. Many of hiz descendanis ave citi-
gong of the town ab the present time.  Colonel ArExaxper Me-
DowELL came here in 179, but did not bring his family notil 1797,
He was o Surveyor and Agent for the Holland Land Company, and
wag from Franklin county, Pennsylvania. Epwann Hare settled
here in 1797.  He was the father of Mrs. Bowsax and Mrs, Javes
Kiswear. He died May 19, 1806, in the thivtieth year of his aee —
Colonel Jasmes G, HErnox came to Franklin in 1800,  The funily
came by land, the finniture wasbronght from Pittsburgh by keel-Tonat.
and was three weeks in making the pazsage. At that time thero
were six familiez in town. These were the familics of GEorer
Powens, Colonel MceDoweLr, Captain Grorce FowLer, Epwarp
Hare, Mark Huniwas, who lived just at the foot of West Park
atreet, and ran & keel-boat between Franklin and  Fittsburgh, and
Anpanmam SELpERS.  These, with Captain HErrox, formed the pop-
alation of the town at the beginning of 1800, Captin GEORGE
¥Fowrrr had been n British officer duving the Revolutionary War,
and had married and settled in the new town, e lived at first in
the old Garrizon, afterwardz on Elk streets near Ninth., He waz a
Justice of the Peace for many years. Captain [HERRON had been an
officer in the Revolotion. He was afterwards one of the important
men of the county.

Colonel MeDoweLL was one of the prominent men of the town
from the first. A remarkable sureical operation is recorded az hav-
ing been performed by Mrea, MeDowgLL, in their early days. She
had but two chickens, and vegetables were searce. A seed enecum-
her had been ripened and the seed taken oot and laid on s table to
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dry in the sur, To the horeor of this good woman, on looking oit,
she discovered that one of these hens had just completed her meal
by devouring those precious seeds. The hen conld not be spared;
the seeds must not be lost. To decide was to act. Seizing the
hen, Mrz. MoDowELL ent open her crop with seissors, forced ont the
sevrdls and then sewed up the wonnd with s needle and thread, when
the hen went on her way rejoicing.

In 1801, the fivst sermon was preached in Franklin, It waz by
a Presbyterian minister, at the honss of Captain HERrON. Soon af-
ter this, a log cabin was erected for a school house, and coverad with
claphoards. Mr. Masox, from Sogarcreek, was the first teacher.

In 180, General Samuen Havs arvived. He was born in Ire-
land, and was always one of the men Venangeo county  delighted to
honor.  He held at different times nearly every office in the zift of
the people. He died in 1868, in the eighty-fifth yvear of his aoe.—
Jolonel MoDowEL at fivst lived in a log eabin on the bank of the
creck, just below the present dam.  Afterwards bhe built a log house
on  Elk street below Kleventh, This was in 1803, The house was
weatherboarded, and stood until o few years ago. There was no
house earpenter in the place, and Jounx Broaoroor, afterwards: o
citizen here, was bronght from il Creek to do the work. If was
ocenpied for some time without windows, az glass was & laxury not
ensily obtained.  Stll it was esteemod a very comfortable and stylish
house. Some time after, the first wall paper ever seem in Franklin
was bronght from  Philadelphia, and hong in this honse. It was of
a quaint style, with white ground and blue pictares of boys and dogs
seattered over it This paper came in sheets, and being thick and
sirong, Iasted until the honse was pulled down in 1874,  Colonel Mo-
DowELL dicd in 1816, in the fftv-thivd yesre of his age.  Mis. Sanan
McDoweLL survived her hnshand just half a centory, living chiefly
in the old housze crected by her hnshand, and serving a2 & connect-
ine link between the ancient and modern times.  She died in 1866,
in the one hondred and thivd year of her age. There are porteails
of these old pionems still extant, Judging from these, Colonel Mo-
DowELL waz . sedate, dignified gentleman, of the Washingtonian
sehionl, nged to prominent position, and well versed in the amenities
of life. Mrs. McDowELL waz a small woman, guite beantiful in
perszon, attractive in conversation, and was esteemed by her acquaint-
ances as a most desivable friend and neighbor.  She lived to see great
changes in the town., Many of their descendants are with us to-day.

Jormn BroanrooT, the earpenter, became one of the first Elders
in the Presbyterian choreh.  He was a Scotchman, and & very sedate,
relinble man. Wiz zon, Joax, remained a bachelor, and was a Jus-
tice of the Peses. Three of hiz danghters married here; one to
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Greneral SamMuen Havs; one to ROBERT, and the third to ALEXAN-
pER McCaryont. A fourth, BeTSY, was never married, bat died
at an advanced acre, March 16th, 1864,

Daring  these years the Indians were frequent vizitors. They
nsnally eneamped on the point above French Creek, bringing their
furs and skins to trade for such necessary articles as they requoired.
At zuch times, with the snzpicion that whisky was amonge their por-
chases, they held many a frolic that continned far into the night, of-
tem awaking the citizens with their wild yells, and remindinge  them
of forest life, and the weak peints of savage natove. Yet withal,
they were peaceful, and very seldom committed any positive mis-
chief. CORXPLARTER was in the habit of making frequent visitz to
consult his old friends.  On one oceasion he came to consult Colonel
DALE as to the propriety of paying taxes om his lands on Ol Creek,
alleging that the Indian asked no tax from the white man, and ask-
ing the same Iimmonity for himself and brethren. Colonel Dare
replied that there were some bad white men in the country who re-
gquired punishment, and that courts and prisons must he provided for
this purpose, and all thizs requoired money, and to raise thi= money
taxes must be levied, © Well,” replied the old Sagamorve, * there
are bad Indians too, that must be punished, bat we attend to that
ourselves, and never ask the white men to assist os, and what is
wood for the Indian muast he good for the white man.” Thiz was
the stern logie of the Indian, to which he always adheved, whoether
it was satisfactory to the white man or not. Thiz question of taxes
was one the Chiel never counld comprehend. It gave him great
trouble. Finally, an sct of the Legislatore was passed exempting
his lands hrom taxation, while they shonld e in his posscssion and
that of his descendants.

At this early day improvement moved slowly. The citizens
were accustomed to mest on moonlight nights and grab stumps
from the public square. At one time Epwarp HavLk had a portion
of this ground under enltivation. The following witneds of this fact
atill survives:

“We the Trustees for the County of Venango, agrea Lo lense 1o
Evwagrp Harg, all that part of the Poblie Sqnare in the town of
Franklin, which the said Epwarn ITAaLe bas now under fence, at the
rate of ope dollar 3 year, until the ground which the sald Harg has
now in eultivation iz wanted for public nse, forthe use of zaid eonnty.

“ June 10th, 1801. “ JTamEs McOrLaARAN,
S ALEXANDER MoDowELL,
“ Attest ;—Joux JOHNSTON. v Troztees.”
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Many persons remember the Old Diamond Well, on the Park,
jnst helow the Kinnear Ilonse.  There is an old doenment extant that
atbests ils age:

*Waea the subseribers appointed to measure and ascertain the
depth of a well dog by Joix Wimneroe, for Epwarp Hare, Sam-
vEL Pruser and Sasuen ITays, do allow that the wall of gaid well
i5 ol and  the depth of said well sceording to our judgment anid
measnrenent is Torty-four feet, oleven inches and one-half,

* Witness onr hands thiz second day of October, 1808,

“WELDEN ADAMSE,
“ Joax WHITMAN,
“ RIgmann (RIFFITH.”

There are 2ome indicationz that the early fathers of Franklin
were vather * ooy and festive,” at times,  On one oeeasion an ordi-
nance was passed thal every person found intoxicated shoald  be
compelled to dig ont o stump from the Pablic Sgoare.  If is farther
related Lthat another ordinance consignad to the jail every one found
in a similar condition on the Sabbath, and that on the Sabbath fol-
lowing the enactment of the law, nearly every solid citizen of the
lown was fonnd in limbo,

In the early days, Coart week wasn gl':mfi ceeazion in Frankiin
and to the county. People thronged the streets and Counrt ITouge,
whether they had buoziness or not.  All took an interest in the trial
of canses, and entered into the merits of the cascs.

The first SBabbath Schonl was established in the month of March,
1824, It was held in the Aeademy. The fivst Superintendenis were
ANDREW BownaN and Levi Don.  The fivst teachers wora WIL-
LIAM PARKER, GEoRGE MoCLerianD, Winnias Raymoxn, F. G.
Crary, RonEnt MoCaryont, Mrs. Davip InviNe, Mrs. WILLIAM
Ravaonn. Mrs, Sanam Maves, Mrs. Sacan 5acr, Miss Many Ax-
pERsoxN, Mrs. ApnoLn Prumer, Mre, Jaws Sxowpexn. Mrs. N, R.
BusnyELL and Mrs. 5. F. DALE, were amongst the first scholars.
Afterwards it was held for a time in Mr. Bowasan'’s shoe shop, on
Elk street.  This was & Union School.  Afterwaids it took on the de-
nominational form, and olher schools were organized, as churches
followad in the wake of inereasing population.

ANDREW BowMAaN came to Venango county in 1795, Ie pur-
sned the husiness of tanning and shoemaking, and moved to Frank-
lin in 1813. In 1816, he erected the house on the corner of Elk and
West Park streets, onee a famons honze, but now showing the
changes of time. LeEvI Dobp came to the connty in 1821, and
to Franklin in 1323. He was born in Washington county, Pennzyl-
vanin. February 28, 1709, and is now one of omr oldest citizens.

Mr. Doop spesks of the popolation of the town at the time of
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his coming az abount two hundved and ffty. There were then prom-
inent amongst the families, the Parks, the Prusers, MeCLELLANDS,
MoConvrers, Kinyrans, MoCarymonTts, CONNELYS, (GALBRATTHE,
Ripowaxs, Morrisoxs, Marrins, CLargs, Saces, DEwoobys, Hu-
LINGE, UrARYS, BLAacks, Ssrrnas, Mavz, Sparonz, BRIGIAMSE, SMI-
LEYS, Baneys, Kincs, Guesers, KevLoges, Graces, MoDowELLS,

- HaYs, BrROADPOOTS, WILLIAM Raymoxn, Dr. Esey, Jouy J. PEAR-

0%, and STEPHEN SUTTON.

WiLLias and Jasmes Kinnear were brothers. The former acted
ag Justice of the Pesce. He had & large family, the members of
which nearly all settled in Franklin. He cane in 1812, and died in
1844, in the sixty-seventh year of his age. James KmNyeir camg
in 1816. He was County Treasmrer for one term; also Associate
Judge, He died February 13, 1851, in the fifty-zixth yearof his agze.
Rev. Huzexian MAy was a Presbyterian clergyman from Marhle-
head, Massnchosetts. IHe sojourned here for o timme, when he -
moved to Tlonesta, where he spent the remainder of hiz dayz. He
died July 4, 1545, inhis seventieth vear., JoHN GALBRATITH was law-
ver and editor here in 1821,  He removed to Erie. where he became
Judze of the Sixth Judicial District. He died June 15th, 1860.—
Joux J. Pearsox removed to Meveer, and iz at the present tino
President Judee of the Harrisbure District.

Others came after this. Amongy them were the BAROLAYS,
Hawwas, MACKEYS, DEWOODYS, ALEXANDERS, TRWINs. Sxow-
DENS, ADans, Tuomrsoxs, Rexos, Woons', Axpersoss, Hoovers,
LameerronNs, Cooanraws, Dirnes’, and others, nntil the tima wonld
fail to enumerate them all, Juodge LasMpintox came in 18305 My,
Mackey in 1831, and Judee Inwin in 1854, The perzons named

“above have nearly all passed away, bat many of their descendants are

onr fellow-citizems to-day.

The first store was opened by GeorcE Powers, followed by
General Winkins, They were followed by Ancumsanp Taxyen.
WitisaM CoONNELY, ARTHUR RonsoN, ATLEXARDER MoCarnwonNTt,
and others. :

PaTenenn was the first hatter. On one occasion he manofac-
tured a wonderful hat from the long hair of 4 neslected colt. This
hair had been shed in the spring, in large masses, and was atilized
in thiz remarkable manner. The sobsequent history of that hat
would be infevesting, but it is lost. PATCHELL was saccesded by
his pupil, AxprEw Diwoopy, who earried on the business fon
many years, Who of the older citizens does not remember ANDREW
Dewoopy's fur hate? He was an honest workman. in every sense
of the word. He never spared material.  The bodies were strongly
made, the for put on most lavishly. Tndeed one of these honestly
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made hats would last w lifetime, for fashions did not changs them
as now, demanding o new hat with every change. Mr. DEwWoOODY
digd Maveh 11th, 1862, aged seventy-six years, AnrRasiram SELDERS
had been the firzt stone-mason, and bnilded as good walls in his day
as econld e expectid with cobble-stones and spawls. With the grand
stones on which the hills rest, begring to be quarried, it was only in
later days that they were used for building purposes. The carly
watls were all built of stones that could be gatherad up without
uATTYing,

Lurier did the blacksmithing, Survice made saddles and
bridles. James Apams had a pottery down in the neighborhood of
the old Forts.  The ware was probably move nseful than ornamental,
bat it anawered a good purpose. He was followed in this line by
ARRATIAM KENKEDY., NATHANIEL CARY was, in Iater days, the tai-
lor. The Samrras, Jouw and Isasc, were watermen and river pi-
lots, ug was also 1hat wonderfol drommer, Janmes Browx., JoHy
SINGLETON was thobrickmaker, Ermmu BUrLEr repaired the watch-
ea, and ab times practiced dentizstry. J. R, SAcE was thehonsebailder.
Mr. HovsER carried the mail to Warren and  back. Joaw Ring-
waAr was the boat-builder. And so every man found his mission,
and there waz plenty of work for all who wished to be employed.

The first lawyer that settled in Franklin was DAvVID [RVINE.—
He came in 1804, and died in 1827. He was the son-in-law of Judgze
Herwox, and his widew iz still living in Erie, at the age of eighty-
geven vears. After him were Jouy J. PRARSON, JOHIN GALBRAITH,
Jamus TwonMeson, JaMes Ross Sxowbpex, 8. P. JoHNSTOX, JOHX
W. Howe, AvexawpeiR McCarMoNT, WILLIAM STEWART, and
others.

The first physicians were SMiTH, BascoM, GILFILLAY, EsPy,
Woon, Favieyer, Ssowbpes, Gronerr, and others. For many
years previous to their coming, physicians came vom Meadville to
vizit the s1ck.

The first chureh in town, regalarly organized, was the Preshy-
terian, in 1817, The first pastor was THoMAS AXDERSON, from 1820
o 1837, The second, Ovros Dioxsown, IRIY, from 1840 (o 1848.—
The Methodist choreh was organized at an early date. Thefirst chureh
edifive was the Presbyterian, in 1835, with a new one in 1867. The
first Methodist chureh was bunilt in 1855, with a new one in 1867.—
Other chinrehes have followed in ordear,

In 1823, there were three hotelsin the town. Grorce POWERS,
the old pioneer, had a hotel on Otter 2treet, in the old stone boilding
that has recently been torn down., GEORGE MoCLELLAND had one
on the site now occupied by the United States, and Colonel JawmEs
EinneAr wasz oceapying the old brick, still standing on the eorner of
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ture was completed the next vear. The first bridge acrozs French
Creek was built in 1819 or 1820, by s company, assisted by the State.
It was a toll bridee for a number of yoears.  The present fron bridee
was evected by the connty. The lower bridge was also built by the
connty. The first strocture was coverad, and was carried away by
the terrible flood of March 17th, 1865, It was suceeeded by another
structure, partly fron.  This, too, was carried away in the breaking
up of the iee in the creek.  The present snbstantial ivon bridge was
built & few years ago, and will probably be permanent, as it is elevat-
ed above the water, and above the level of former works that pre-
caded it.

As Franklin has alwayz manifested more or lezz ambition, it was
incorporated as a Boronghin 1820, WiLLiay CoNyELY was the first
Burgess. Laler, its citizens applicd for a Oity charter. Thiz was
aoranted by an act of Assembly in 1863, T, A. Doppn was the first
Mayor, ander thiz eharter.

The public improvements of the eity are worthy of commaenda-
tion., A Water Company was organized in 1864, that snpplies the
citizens with pure spring water, drawn  from the neizhboring hills,
The reservoira have a snflicient head to carry the water to the high-
est rooms in the eity. In 1870, a Gas Company was organized, that
furnishes a very good quality of gas; but the competition is diffienlt
with our native oil at ten cents per gallon.

Perhaps no town of its size in the whaole country is o well sup-
plied with good, permanent, sidewalks as Franklin. The flags are
found in onr hills, and stones of almost any size can he obtained,—
Every prominent street has been snpplied with these flags, until miles
of the finest walks are foand that will not soon need to be renewed,
Many of these flags bear marks of & very high antiquity.  Rain pats
and ripple marks ace found on the smooth face of many hoary slabs,
bearing the record of the ages, anild noting the changes that they bring.

Feanklin has not suffered mneh from fire. Anciently the citi-
zens had a good facnlty of turning out in cazes of alarm. Men and
women, and boys, forming lines, passed water in buckets to extinguish
fives. Some twenty years ago the postoffice was burned.  The most
serions five in its history ocomred on Febroary 1st, 1866. It com-
menced in a snspicions house on  Liberty street, just above the cor-
ner of Thirteenth; swept down to Thirteenth and along that street
to Elk; then down Liberty, on the north side, to what is now Centre
Block, where it was staved. A few yoars aflterwards the Exehange
Hotel was burned, ot the fire extended no farther. A very efficient
force of fire companies has been in organization for a number of
vears. Thiz, with the fire police, has rendered very efficient and
gnecessiul service doring the progress of 2ome reeent fires,
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Aceording to the censos of 18560, the population of the town was
g33. At that time among the profeéssional men were Drs. N. D.
SxowDpEN and B, GrLierT, as physicians.  The lawyers were ALEX-
Anper MoCarvoxnt, Jorw W. HowE, Jawes 8. Myers, N. R. Busn-
NELL, R. 8. MoCorMick, JaMes K. Kegr, BE. C. Witsox and W. H.
LAMBERTON. Apam WEBRER was postmaster.  The merchants were
Roprrr Lasmeerrox, James G. Ladmeerrox, Myrox Park, WiL-
LIAM RavMoND, Josian Avawz, 5. Lo Uryax, JaMEes BLEAKLEY,
Savurn Bamey, Jonw H. Spanxox, and Niokoinw & Brypen.—
ARNDREW BowdMAN was tanner and zshoemaker:; LEvI DoDn wihis
cabinet maker; I. B. Rowe was houscbailder; €. W. MACKEY was
wagonmaker; GRORGE GRISHABBER was blacksmith; Axprew De-
woony was hatter, and Troomas Mooke was saddler.  There wera
but two churches then, Preshyteriam, and Methodist. S0 J. M. Ea-
ToN was pastor of the former, and Moses HiL of the latter, There
wore two newszpapers, e Advocele and Jonraal, edited by E. 8.
Duerax, and The Venangoe Speciaior, edited by A, P, WHITAKER.
Thiz was the position of the town a little after the fivst hall' contury
of its life had closad.

OIL CITY,

although a modern town on the zeore of years, has yet attained to
ereat importance and prosperity. Tt has had a vapid, healthy and
promizing growth, There are many elements in the spendid pros-
perity that has attended it.  I6s location is moeh in ils favor.  I1is
on the river and at the month of Oil Creek, where the first import-
ant developments were made. Tt is the most important railroad
centre in the entire il region.  In addition to these advantages it
wasd early sottled by a class of energetic, persevering business men,
who have bromght both energy and capital to the boilding up of its
interastd.  IFromy its position and the character of its people, it most
always be an important shipping point; and the history of the past
iz a guaranty of the suecess of the ftore.

The town 15 situated on both sides of the Allecheny River and at
the same time includes the territory above and below the mouth of
(il Creelk. The territory on the western side of tho creck was set-
tled original by Fraxcis Hoooipay., By him it was purchased from
the State in 1803, It was for a long time his home and that of his

‘family., About thirty years ago it came info the hands of Dr. Joux
Nevixs. Here he lived, practiced medicine, hunted foxes, and en-
joved himself socially, withont any  dream of the wealth and im-
portance that should attach to hiz homble home at the basze of the
cliff. It next passed into the hands of PLoMER and DRUM, and was
finally zold fo the Michizan Rock 0il Company. By them the
ground was laid ont in lots, and buaildings began to be erected.—
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Thiz was about the year 1859, Previons to this time, there weve but
three or fowr houses on this side of the Creek, There was the old
Moran Honse. It had been a famons vesort for lumbermen in its
day. Inthe Spring and Fall, and duving * June freshes," as they
were called, lombermen had thronged avonnd it like beez. Long
lines of rafts were o be ssen moored Lo the bank of the River, in
the eddy, daving the times of hizh water, and on a small scale
sornethinge of the excltenent of the oil huginess was witnessad aronnd
it. Often rafts were moored for the distance of a mile above and
below the mouth of the Creck. The sonnd of the fiddle and the
lond tramp of heavy boots were heard far into the night, making a
geene of great activity and execitoment. There was also the Red
Lion Hotel nearer the mouth of the Creek, that hud been standing a
shorter length of fime, bat was also a prominent point with the
lombermen, During the season of low water the place was quiat
and hardly a ripple moved o disturb its tranquility.

In 1832, Joun P. HorewELL established a store not far below
the mouth of the Creek, that seemad a kinid of prophecy of the com-
ine fide of business.

Crossing to the east, or upper side of the Creek, we find, at the
beginning of the centary theland in the possession of CORNPLANTER,
the Chief of the Senecas. The Government, in recognition of his
services during the Revolationary War, had assigned him ecertain
tracts of land, amongst others, three hundred acres at the month of
il Creek, extending up the flat on the npper gide. This land had
heen surveyed by Colonal DALE, Depaty Sarveyor, and a deed made
ont for the same. The possession of this deed, and the actual cor-
nerz and * blazes* of the Soeveyor did mnoeh fo reeoncile the old
wanrior to the settlement of the country by the white peopls.

The old Chief held this land for many years. He visited it fre-
guently ; his people came to gather oil from its springs, and to hunt
ani fish in its neighborhood. - By him it was at last sold, throngh the
azency of WiLLiasm CoNNELY, and by some legal process eame into
the hands of MaTTiIiAs StockeERGER and Ricnarp Noves, for a vory
maderate price. It afterwards became the property of WiLLiAM BELL.
Afterwaris it eame into the possession of Gravy, Hassox & Co. A
warchonse and steamboat landing were prepurad. A blast farnace
and millz were erected, propelled by water power taken from ihe
Creek, A foundry was connected with the fornace. Occaszionally
an old stove is fonnd still, thronghout the conntry, bearing the in-
seription, * 0l Creek Furnace.” Thesze works were carried on for
a time by the Crakys.  OF course, there was a store connected with
them, as that seemed an absolute necessity in all farnace operations.

Buat a uh:a_ngc came, The furnace blaw its last blast; the mill
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wheel made its last vevolation; the warchouse fell into dilapidation
the weeds grew rankly aroond the store door; there was no sign of
life, save that the dwelling house of the eoncern was 2till ocenpied.
This was the state of the case in 1850, Up to 1850, when the first
oil well was steuck, there were no signs of progperity or enterprise,
In that year there were not nrore than half a dozen families in all
the region coversd by the entive active city of the present. In the
vear 1864, this land was purchazed by the Petroleom Farms Assocl-
ation, and by them laid out in lots,

During the yvearzs 1860 and 1861, the town began to grow  and
put on the air of businsss.  On the west side of the Creek the first
building erected was the Pipe and Brass Fitting Shop of CHARLES
Bossow.  This was followed by the store-rooms of MeFARLAND
Brothers, of Meadville, and Revxonps Brothers, of Clarion connty.
After this the growth of the town was rapid and everything was
pished with energy and sueeess. [t was incorporated as a Borongh
in 1862, The first Burgess was WiLnras Hassox.

In the meantime o settlement ha:l commence:d on the sonth side
of the River. Ths first well was strnok there in April, 1861, on the
Dowxisg avm, by Pamcuies & Vawavsparnn.,  This prodoced sono
thirty-five barvels per day, and the oil was sold at zixty-four cents
per gallon.  In 18635, Winniam L. Lay purehased the BAsTian fum
and laid ont a town called Laytonia.  Sabsequently, Jases Break-
LEY, of Franklin, purchased the Dowwme fam adjoining, on the
upper side of Laytonis, and laid ont a town called Imperial City.—
These two towns were consolidated by an order of Court in 1866,
forming a Borough, with the name of Venango Citv. The new
Borongh was favorably located on gently rvising groomd, and im-
proved rapidly. A lridge connecting it with Oil City gave easy ac-
cogs, and it became a favorite place of residence to many persons in
business in Oil City. ;

In 1863, Cottage Hill was purchased by J. H. Manstow and
CrHaARLES Hawes, and laid ont in lots. This addition leads np the
hill side and covers the erest of the hill that overlooks the oarlier
part of the town and river.

(il City has not beon withont itz misfortunes. The great flood
of 1865 swept away a large portion of the enstern side, Tt was re-
built, and in 1866 swept away acain by lire. It has acsin been ve-
built in & move substantial manner. The weztern side of the Creek
has also been devastated by five. Thiz portion of the city has not
hean fully rebunilt.

By act of Assembly of March 1, 1871, Oil City and Venango
City were consolidated, with the name of the former, and a City
eharter.  The first Mayor was Winnram M. Winriams.
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At first the bouildings were rather frail in their character. Buosi-
ness conld not wait for stone foundations and brick walls. Of late
yvoars the buildine has boan of o sabstantial character. Many fine
brick blocks have taken the places of the early wooden baoildings.
The Collins Honse 12 one of the finest hotal baildings in the Sinte.

The City is will supplied with chorches. The principal denom-
inatinng In the conntey are reprosentod.

As a Bailroad centre it has peenliar advantages. The Franklin
Branch of the Atlantie and Great Western Railroad, the Allegheny
Valley, the Jamestown and Franklin, and Oil Creek and Allegheny,
with the River Division of the latter, all terminate there. The Wa-
b srndd Gras Companies add to the comfort and safety of the city.

0il Creek iz spanned by a fine iron bridge, and arrangements
are making for o second bridee acrozs the Allecheny. Thers are a
namber of producing wells within the City limits, with s very large
amount of tankagze for the storage of oil. An Oil Exchange is lo-
eated on one of the principal strests, with its excitements and its in-
contives to business,

il City must always maintain its ascendency as the principal
market in the oil region, and the healthfalness and salubrity of the
climate make it attractive to those encarail in its business.

ROUSEVILLE.

This was at one thne a great shipping point for oil. It iz on il

Creck, abont three miles above Oil City and at the mouth of Cherry

tun. It was near this that the great eonflageation took place in
April, 1861, that resulted in the death of erchteen men, and the se-
vere burning of twenty otherz.  Amongst thoss who died was H. R.
Rowsn, alter whom the town  was numed. A vein of gas had  heen
strnek that took fire from the engine, throwing oil snd fire aronnd to
the diztance of a number of rods,

Ronseville has had a large degres of prosperiby, but of late
years has declined with the decline of business in the oil valley.—
There is considerable ofl s6ill produced in the vicinity, and a revival
of prices wonld bring a revival of business. It is well supplied with
churches.

PETROLEUM CENTRE.

Thiz wasz a wonderful town in its day. It was remarkable for
its business, for the enerey and push of its bosiness men, and for the
wickedness of some of it= institutions. Buosiness and profligacy jost-
led each other. Yet withal, the institntions of morality and relizgion
kept on the even course of their way. They were the salt that pre-
vanted the mass from corraption and death. The town ig in the (il
Creek valley, midway between il City and Titosville. It is in the
midst of the greatest development of oil in all the country fifteen
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. years ago. It attained at that time to a popalation of aboab twenty-
five hundred. Bat, with the going down of the oil production, the
place has declined. It was never incorporated, and althongh Iaid
ont in Iotz, the lots were simply leasad.

PLEASANTVILLE

is locatad in the northern part of the county, having a delightful sit-
uation and pleasant surroundings, Tt was settled in 1520 by AARON
Bexmopicr. In 1833, Joux Browy came and made his home and
place of business there. In 1849, it was incorporated as a Borough,
having about two hundred and fifiv inhabitants.  In modern times
it had as exeiting a history as almost any of the oil towns. Tt began
te- be active as an ofl town in 1868, when it seemed as though it was
loeated over the frreat oil basin of the country. At one time there
were over two handred wells prodoeing a daily ageregate of zome
twi thousand barrels. The forest of derricks covering the hill indi-
entad the confidenve of the people in the territory. There are sov-
eral churches there, with three luge brick blocks of baildings, and
two banks.  Although the oil business has failed lavgely, it is still 4
place of importance.
v PITHOLE CITY,

This place is in the northeastern part of the connty, and has a
most remarkable historyv., No town in the gold vegions of the far
west sprang up with greater rapidity, or declined move rapidly than
this. Developments commenced there in 1883, There was bat a
sinrle farm house there on the st of May of that vear. By the
eloze of Septeber, a period of five months, it bad attained to a pop-
wlation of fifteen thonsand. It had its hotels, chorches, theaters,
opera houses, and all the machinery, good and evil, that pertaing to
a large city, It was an oil lown exclusively, The “United States™
and “General Grant” wells gave the Impetns Lo the wild speculations
that went forward until the largest sales of real estate were made
there that have ever been Enown in the history of the oil bosiness.—
But business declined.  Thoe ofl was contined to o 2nall basin  and
was soon exhansted. The town was deserted.  Baildingz that had
heen orected al vast axpense wors removed to Pleasantville, to il
City, to Franklin; and the great city has become but an obscare vil-
lages with no traces of its fopmer glory.

v PLUMER
is at the head of Cherry Run.  The Plomer Honse was onee a i}ﬂint
on the Warren and Franklin tornpike. It is about eight miles above
il City. It became prominent dorving the oil times. The Huom-
bolilt Refinery was located there.  With other towns, it has suffered
with the decline of the oil husiness in its nelrhborhood.
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OLEQPOLIS.
This town iz at the mouth of Pithole Creek, on the Allegheny.
At one time a Railroad extended from this place to Pithols City.—
The road hns been taken up and  the once promizing city has zone
btk to the quiet days of old.

SIVERLEY VILLE

is two miles above 0§l City, on the northern bank of the Allegheny.
The place was for a long time the property of Pommir SIvERLey. A
very large Refinery is located there, Itis known as the Standard
il Company, and iz doing n flonrishing business,
RIEENC

12 sitnated on the novthern bank of the ;’!..]]qagheuy, gome fomr milas
above Franklin, The site was first zettled by a man named Crie-
FomnDy, carly in the present century.  After him BOwLEs was in pos-
semsion.  OF late years it was known as the Suavreer and Hows
farms.  In 1863, it was purchased by the Reno Gil Company, and a
town laid ont. It has produced a large quantity of oil within its
limits. At ome time the Reno and Tithole Railroad extended as far
ag Honzeville, across the hills, [t haz now been discontinned.

¥ EMLENTON
is the third town in the county in importance. Tt is on the Alle-
gheny, near the sonthern boundary of the county. The Allegheny
Valley Railroad passes through it.  Joserm M. Fox was one of the
original proprietors of the territory on whieh it was bailt. His wifa's
maiden name was Hanwan ExMrey,  From her the town derives its
name. JOHN KERR and Jonx Cocnrax were the first settlers.—
AxprReEw MoCasLiy opened a store in 1820,  ITe was followed by
P. G. HoLLISTER. in the same business,  After them came Keating,
Canxes, and others, There are  several churches in the place.  Iis
businesz facilitics ave a flonr mill, fonndry, planing mill and bank.—
The Tableanx Academy is a fing brick nilding, a matter of private
pnterprise,

COOPERSTOWN
is sitnated on Sugar Creek, nine miles from Franklin, It was locat-
el on lands belonging to WiLLiam CoorERr, abont the year 1827. A
fine: woolen factory has long heen in operation there; alzso, flonr
anid saw mills. Tt has a Methodist and - Preshyterian  church, anid
a thriving trade.

WALLACEVILLE.

JoHN RopaErs boilt mills here in 1840, Three years afterwands
the property was purchased by W. W. Warrnace, of Pittsburgh,—
The town was namad after him. Itis in Plum township, in the
midst of a good farming region.
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CHAPMANYILLE
15 on the Meadville andd Titosville road, in the extreme novthwestorn
portion of the county. Tt has the nanal buildings pertaining to small
ﬁﬂ:tgéﬁ, The postoffice is called Plum.
UTICA

is situated on French Creek and the Atlantic and Great Western Rail-
voad, abont eight miles from Franklin, The land oviginally belong-
e to JAMES ADpams, and was sold by him to A, W, Rayyoxn, in
1830, and  the town laid ont in 1832-3. Itis called afier Utien in
the State of New York. Millz and stores form the centre around
which the village has prown. Tt has two churches and an academy.

RAYMILTOXN
i5 on Sandy Creek, on the line of the Jumestown and Franklin Rail-
roadd, AL W, Baymonp is the proprietor.  He commenced  here in
15344, by crecting a blast furpace, flour aml saw-mills. It is now a
grand shipping point for oil. A pipe line from Butler connty brings
o large amount of oil here for shipment. It has an fron tankage of
some two homdred thowsand barrels, It is about ten miles from
Franklin.
WATERLOO
i= gix miles from Frankling on Sandy Creek and the Jamestown aml
Franklin Bailresd. The property was owned by Aanox MoKissiok,
who laid ont the town in 1859, It has two charches, an academy,
mills, store, and barrel factory.  The name of i poat olliee is Polk.

DEMPSEYTOWN
i3 in Oakland township, and wes lnid out on land of LAWRENCE
DExesey, from whom i tikes its name.  Mr. DEMPSEY wnzs ong of
the first settlers in the township.,  The village has gradually grown
up, 48 the wants of the community have called for improvements.
It has itz stove, hotel, mechanics’ shops, and churches,

SUNVILLE

ig in Plam township. It was Iaid oot many years aro, W, W, Da-
vinsox had the fivst store theve. It has clurehes and an seademy.

CHERBEYTHER.

This village i3 located near the point where Winnias BEysoLng
encampid in 1797, a2 he came bere to hew ont a home for himself
and family amid these grand old womds.  Around a store and black-
smiith shop a small village eseadually crvstalized, and the old farmers,
weary of their conflict with years of toil come to spend the remain-
der of their days. It is in Cherrytros township, some three miles
from Petroleum Centre,

MECHANICSVILLE

i in Irwin township, on the Franklin and  Hacvisville road, It was
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laid ont in 1851, Amongst the firstsettlers were Joux Bryawn, Cox-
RAD SHawea, Winniax Boss, Daxier Woonnme, and J. F. Bie-
LINGELEY. The postoflice is called Wesley.
SALINA

is in Cranberry township, on the Clarvion pike, and about seven miles
from Franklin. - There was a hotel there, then a blacksmith shop,
then a store.  These are the elements of a village. If began to as-
gume this form about 1855, It has o Baptist chureh,  The oil husi-
nesz has added greatly to its prosperity and growth.

: SALENM . :
is a modlern village, sitaated on the road from Salina to Oil City. It
is in Cranberry township, and began to be called a village in 1865,
The postoffice is callml Sensea.

FREEDOM

i in Hockland township, and  was foanded by Josnoa Davis, one
of the Assoviate Judges of the connty, It is a small place, the site
of the Rockland Preshyterian church.

NICKLEVILLE
is in Richland township. It was founded by Winriayv NickLE, and
lias the usual conveniences of country  villagoes—astores, shops, anid
chorehes, with a postofliee, /

CLINTONVILLE

iz In Clinten township, snd dutez back to abont 1833, The initial
movement was a atore opened by WinLiax Cross and JAMES PERRY.
There were but two honses in the place at that time.  In the neigh-
borhood, Winnray Cross erected & steam flour mill on Scrubgrass
Creck, This waz in 1837. Three years afterwards, WirLiam and
W. O Cross built s blast furnace, oundry, woolen mill, saw-mill,
tannery and forniture shop. Roeert Cnoss, one of the Associate
Judges of the county, had a stove in Clintonville for forty years. He
died in Jone, 1874, in the sixty-thivd year of his age. WILLIAM
Cross, the pioneer of the village, died November 3, 1861, in the
sovenly-sixih year of his age.

KENNERDELL.

At this place; two miles from Scrubgrass Station on the Alle-
gheny River, considerable manufacturing is carried on. The first
machinery was set up heve by Davip Pmrees.  Flour and saw-mills,
a woolen factory and oil mill, were a great convenience to the people.
The power is from Serubgrass Creek. 1t is now sapplemented by
abeamy, in the hands of Mr. KESSERDELL.  The chiel business now
is the manufacture of woolen goods.  Fabries from common flan-
nels up to fine blankets and cloths are made here squal Lo the best in
the country. With good machinery and a practical knowledge of
the bysiness, these works have been very prosperous. The scenery
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alomg Seraberass Creek in the neighborhood is wild, and the country
rough, but upon the height of land, the country is fine and well adapt-
ad Lo agriculture,

There are a namber of other small towns in varionz parts of the
county, as Hannaville, in Canal township; Springville, in Sandy-
ereclk ; President, in President; that have their importance, bat have
not attained to general notice.  President was the site of the furnace
of the same name, thivty years ago. The proprietor was Ranren
Crave, There is now a fine hotel, store and postoffice there, that
make it the centre of influence for the township., Eagle Rock and
Henryville are in the same township—the Intler at Henvy's Bend, —
Trinmph iz on O] Creek. two niiles above Petrolenm Centre; Shamn-
burg iz between Petroleam Centre and Pleasantville. 1t iz the site
of extensive oil operations under the superintendence of Dr. Smam-
EURG.  Another point in this neighborhodd is called Bed Hot. The
ol hosiness was exceedingly active at this place for atime.  That
may account for the name. Kane City is in the same neighborhood.
Bredinsbarg i5 in Cranberry township, on the State rond, some five
miles from Franklin, The oil business was very promising there
for n time, and the town grew rvapidly. But the development did
not continue long, and the town is in the sear and vellow leaf. It
has bt shavad the fate of other oil towns that made Freater proten-
sions and met with less sneeess,  Foster and Scrubgrass ave stations
on the Allegheny Valley Railroad.  The latter is abont sixteen miles
below Franklin, and has considerable importance as being closely
eonnected with a productiveocil territdry,  Theve s a wire ferry there
that connects with the road to Kennewndell and Clintonville.  There
are othor paints that are coming into prominence, bt time  fails ns
to notiee them particalarly.

We have thus, in brief speech, revicwed the history of the can-
tury as it relates to Venango county,  We have found progress and
improvement amongst all the decades that make up the roundad
century. In hardship and in snceess, in peace and in war, in joy
and in sorrow, this rocky, hilly connty has made eonstant advanees
and has helped on the grand work of making onr common country
what it i3 to=day ; a nation prosperous and free; » home for the im-
migrantz of all the lands on the face of the eartl.  May thiz county,
with other counties in the State, and  other States in the Union, and
still other States vet to be, ever keep in the way of progress, until
thiz mnation shall become great in law, in justice, in truth and
righteonsnesa ; until thiz glorions Flag of Stars shall be fo all nations
the symbol of freedom, of civil and relizgions liberty, and the grand
ropresentative of national oreatness in all the cacth!
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